
1. Approval of Agenda
2. Safety Moment
3. Consent Agenda

3.A. Minutes of the Rochester Public Utility Board Meeting of April 25, 2023

3.B. Minutes of the Rochester Public Utility Board Meeting of May 16, 2023

3.C. Review of Accounts Payable

3.D. Annual Cayenta Maintenance 2023

3.E. Painting of Gas Turbine #2 (GT-2) - Project # 2023-08

3.F. Bid Rejection for Construction of Wellhouse #42 - Project #2023-06

Public Utility Board Agenda
Rochester Boards & Commissions - Public Utility Board

May 30, 2023
4:00 p.m. 

 Attending and Viewing the Meeting
Attend in-person at 4000 E River Rd NE, RPU Community Room, Rochester, MN or via MS Teams.
 
Call in audio only number: 347-352-4853 Conference ID: 472 207 392#
 
A recording is made available after the meeting at the City's website. 
 
Call to Order/Roll Call

 
 
 

 Approve the minutes and video of the April 25, 2023 meeting of the Rochester Public Utility
(RPU) Board.

 Approve the minutes and video of the May 16, 2023 meeting of the Rochester Public Utility
(RPU) Board.

 Review the list of consolidated and summarized transactions for 4/11/2023 to 5/9/2023 in the
total amount of $10,669,272.35.

 
Approve the invoice payment to N. Harris Computer Corporation in the amount of $206,512.41,
plus applicable tax, for annual maintenance and support.

 Authorize an agreement with Sorensen & Sorensen Painting and Decorating, Inc. in the amount
of $162,500.00 for the painting of GT-2 and approve a 10% contingency funding of $16,250.00.
Approval of this action also authorizes the RPU Project Manager to perform the acts to execute
the project. 

 Approve a resolution rejecting the wellhouse bid from Alvin E. Benike, Inc.

1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%253ameeting_Y2Y4MDg0YjYtYTE3ZC00Mjc4LWJiNzgtYTZhNjFiMmY0NmU3%2540thread.v2/0?context=%257B%2522Tid%2522%253A%2522cb27df39-77b0-4068-b566-20ba44fa9279%2522%252C%2522Oid%2522%253A%252202b6f02e-19e9-4f0f-895a-3fda34ad1eae%2522%252C%2522IsBroadcastMeeting%2522%253Atrue%252C%2522role%2522%253A%2522a%2522%257D&btype=a&role=a
https://www.rochestermn.gov/
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/1c99fe92195d66c55aea63cb726e428e0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/3a06d067df4450e451f327f738be184c0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/2e6ca19b0b3fe71cf6cf80bc105a3ff60.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/ce7b0b86e9772011615100a9e6921d1c0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/b253e7b45381fc993ecd102d60dff7820.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/e228c69124995db63a9b435be774dce30.pdf


4. Regular Agenda

4.A. Election of Officers

5. Informational

5.A. AMI, MDM and Meter Install Procurements - RFP Analysis and Project Status Report

6. Board Policy Review

6.A. RPU Index of Board Policies

7. General Managers Report
8. Division Reports & Metrics

8.A. Division Reports & Metrics - May 2023

9. Other Business
10.Adjournment

Open Public Comment Period
This agenda section is for the purpose of allowing citizens to address the Utility Board. Comments are
limited to 4 minutes, total comment period limited to 15 minutes. Any speakers not having the opportunity
to be heard will be the first to present at the next Board meeting.
Consideration of Bids

Marion Road Substation Budget Update and Electrical Duct Bank Project Bids (Project #2023-
05)
 
Senior Electrical Engineer Steve Cook will provide a brief summary of the Marion Road Substation
and Electrical Duct Bank Project with status of deliverables. The Board is also asked to authorize an
agreement with Veit & Company, Inc. in the amount of $13,954,839.41 for the Marion Road - Mayo
Clinic Underground Distribution Project and approve contingency funding of $2,790,967.88. Approval
of this action also authorizes the RPU Project Manager to perform the acts to execute the project. 
 
 
 

 

 Election of the Board President, Vice-President and appointment of the Board Secretary

 

 
Informational only, no action requested

 

 Review the Index of Board Policies to summarize progress on policy updates and determine
future policy review items.

 
 

 Review the reports from each of RPU's five divisions: Core Services, Compliance and Public
Affairs, Power Resources, Customer Relations and Corporate Services.

 
 

2

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/c4e056aba257aaf0be463d2f2b79f6fb0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/89ba1b74c3096973778f99cd47c91b590.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/3a267379d7f69e029a1fd92051b84e930.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/b8317e69d0457b6876f9ff51484926700.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rochestermn/8649ab12030fe3ac5425e8ac7793d7f60.pdf


MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consent Agenda

PRESENTER:
Mark Kotschevar

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Minutes of the Rochester Public Utility Board Meeting
of April 25, 2023

3.A

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Approve the minutes and video of the April 25, 2023 meeting of the Rochester Public Utility (RPU)
Board.

Report Narrative:
Official minutes of the RPU Board are published in accordance with Open Meeting Law, capturing the
official record of the RPU Board.

Policy Considerations & DEI Impact:
Minutes and video of the appointed boards of the City provide access and transparency to RPU systems,
processes, and decision making conversations. This promotes the City's values and comports with State
law.

Prior Legislative Actions & Community Engagement:
Minutes of the previous RPU Board meeting are generated monthly.

Fiscal & Resource Impact:
No fiscal impact of publishing minutes.

Prepared By:
Christina Bailey

Attachments:
20230425 Minutes.pdf

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1974477/20230425_Minutes.pdf


Public Utility Board - April 25, 2023 
 
 
 

CITY OF ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA 
Public Utility Board MINUTES

Attendee Name Status
Melissa Graner Johnson Present
Brian Morgan Present
Tim Haskin Present
Brett Gorden Present
Patrick Keane Present

MOVER: Patrick Keane
SECONDER: Brett Gorden
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin, Brett

Gorden, Patrick Keane
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

Attending and Viewing the Meeting
 
Call to Order/Roll Call
 

1) Approval of Agenda
 

Motion to approve the agenda.

 
2) Safety Moment
 

Safety Manager Bob Cooke gave a report to the Board.
 

3) Consent Agenda
 

3.A) RPU Board Minutes of March 28, 2023 
 
Official Act: Approve the Minutes and place on file

 
Cover Page 4

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29168
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29169
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29170
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29172


MOVER: Patrick Keane
SECONDER: Brett Gorden
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin, Brett

Gorden, Patrick Keane
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

 
20230328 Minutes.pdf 
 

3.B) Accounts Payable April 2023 
 
Official Act: Review Accounts Payable April 2023

 
Cover Page 
 
AP Board List Current Month.pdf 
 
Clerk's Note: Board Member Brian Morgan abstained from voting on lines
125 and 341.
 

3.C) Amendment 8 to Schedule A of the Power Sales Contract between SMMPA
and the City of Rochester 
 
Official Act: Management recommends that the Utility Board approve
Amendment 8 to Schedule A of the Power Sales Contract between Southern
Minnesota Municipal Power Agency and the City of Rochester, dated
January 1, 2023.

 
Cover Page 
 
ScheduleA_Amendment.pdf 
 
20230425 Resolution - Amendment 8 to Schedule A of the Power Sales
Contract between SMMPA and City of Rochester.docx 
 

3.D) Board Policy 1. Mission Statement 
 
Official Act: Approve the revised Mission Statement Policy

 
Cover Page 
 
01 Mission Statement - Clean.pdf 
 
20230425 Resolution - Board Policy 1. Mission Statement.docx 
 

Motion to approve the consent items in block 3.A-3.D.

 
Open Public Comment Period
 

5

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29173
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29175
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29176
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29178
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29179
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29180
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29182
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29183
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29184


MOVER: Patrick Keane
SECONDER: Brian Morgan
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin, Brett

Gorden, Patrick Keane
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Tim Haskin
SECONDER: Patrick Keane
AYES: None

The open comment period was opened. 
Having no persons wishing to speak, the open comment period was closed.
 

4) Regular Agenda
 

4.A) Audit Presentation - 2022 Annual Audit Results 
 
Official Act: Recommend the Board accept the financial audit report and
place on file

 
Cover Page 
 
20230425 Resolution - 2022 Annual Audit Results.docx 
 
Aaron Worthman of Baker Tilly presented on the item. 
 
Motion to receive and file the financial audit report.

 
4.B) PURPA Standards:  Demand-Response Practices and Electric Vehicle

Charging Programs 
 
Official Act: Approval of Resolution electing not to adopt the PURPA
standards as amended

 
Cover Page 
 
Proposed Findings v2.docx 
 
PURPA Record Exhibits.docx 
 
EC Written Comment, PURPA Standards.pdf 
 
20230425 Resolution - PURPA Standards, Demand-Response Practices and
Electric Vehicle Charging Programs.docx 
 
Director of Compliance and Public Affairs Steve Nyhus presented on the item
and answered questions from the Board.
 
Motion to adopt a resolution electing not to adopt the PURPA standards as
amended.

6

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29187
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29188
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29189
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29190
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29191
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29192
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29193
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29194
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29195


NAYS:

RESULT:

MOVER: Patrick Keane
SECONDER: Tim Haskin
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin, Brett

Gorden, Patrick Keane
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

 
4.C) Funding Request - Existing Benike Construction Contract at Marion Road

Substation 
 
Official Act: Authorization of an additional $190,000.00 for the contingency
fund to complete construction.

 
Cover Page 
 
20230425 Resolution - Funding Request - Existing Benike Construction
Contract at Marion Road Substation.docx 
 
Electric Utility Manager of Construction and Maintenance Neil Stiller
presented on the item and answered questions from the Board.
 
Motion to adopt a resolution authorizing an additional contingency budget of
$190,000 to complete construction for Marion Road Substation. 
Clerk's Note: Board Member Keane moved alternative language as part of
the motion, substituting "an additional contingency budget" for "a payment" in
the body of the resolution.

 
5) Informational
 

5.A) RPU Renewable Energy Objective 
 
Official Act: Informational only, no action requested

 
Cover Page 
 
Portfolio Optimization Manager Dirk Bierbaum presented on the item.
 

5.B) 2022 Electric Engineering & Operations Report Presentation 
 
Official Act: Informational only, no action requested

 
Cover Page 
 
2022 Electric E&O Report - FINAL.pdf 
 
Engineering Manager Randy Anderton presented on the item.
 

Melissa  Graner  Johnson,  Brian  Morgan,  Tim  Haskin,  Brett
Gorden, Patrick Keane
DENIED [UNANIMOUS]

7

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29196
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29197
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29198
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29200
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29201
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29202
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29203
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29204


MOVER: Patrick Keane
SECONDER: Brian Morgan
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin, Brett

Gorden, Patrick Keane
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

6) Board Policy Review
 

6.A) RPU Index of Board Policies 
 
Official Act: No Board action required

 
Cover Page 
 
Index of Board Policies-revised.xlsx 
 
Board President Graner Johnson presented on the item. 
 

7) General Managers Report
 

General Manager Mark Kotschevar delivered a monthly report on multiple
informational items.
 

8) Division Reports & Metrics
 

8.A) Division Reports & Metrics - April 2023 
 
Official Act: No Board action required

 
Cover Page 
 
Division Reports April 2023.pdf 
 

9) Other Business
 
10) Adjournment
 

Motion to adjourn at 5:12 p.m.

 
 
 
 
 

8

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29207
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29208
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29209
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29212
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29213
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=233&meta_id=29214


MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consent Agenda

PRESENTER:
Mark Kotschevar

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Minutes of the Rochester Public Utility Board Meeting
of May 16, 2023

3.B

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Approve the minutes and video of the May 16, 2023 meeting of the Rochester Public Utility (RPU) Board.

Report Narrative:
Official minutes of the RPU Board are published in accordance with Open Meeting Law, capturing the
official record of the RPU Board.

Policy Considerations & DEI Impact:
Minutes and video of the appointed boards of the City provide access and transparency to RPU systems,
processes, and decision making conversations. This promotes the City's value and comports with State
law.

Prior Legislative Actions & Community Engagement:
Minutes of the previous RPU Board meeting are generated monthly.

Fiscal & Resource Impact:
No fiscal impact of publishing minutes.

Prepared By:
Christina Bailey

Attachments:
20230516 Minutes.pdf

9

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1968394/20230516_Minutes.pdf


RPU Special Board Meeting - May 16, 2023 

CITY OF ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA 
RPU Special Board Meeting MINUTES

Attendee Name Status
Melissa Graner Johnson Present
Brian Morgan Present
Tim Haskin Present
Patrick Keane Present
Brett Gorden Absent

MOVER: Brian Morgan
SECONDER: Patrick Keane
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin,

Patrick Keane
ABSENT: Brett Gorden
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Brian Morgan

Attending and Viewing the Meeting

Call to Order/Roll Call

1) Approval of Agenda

Move to approve the agenda.

2) Regular Agenda

2.A) Recommendation of Hire for RPU’s General Manager position 

Official Act: Approve the recommended hire for RPU's General Manager
position.

Cover Page 

Deputy City Administrator Aaron Parrish presented on the item.

Motion to designate Tim McCollough as RPU's General Manager with a start
date of July 31, 2023.

10

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=264&meta_id=32302
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=264&meta_id=32303
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=264&meta_id=32304
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=264&meta_id=32305
https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=264&meta_id=32306


SECONDER: Tim Haskin
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin,

Patrick Keane
ABSENT: Brett Gorden
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Tim Haskin
SECONDER: Brian Morgan
AYES: Melissa Graner Johnson, Brian Morgan, Tim Haskin,

Patrick Keane
ABSENT: Brett Gorden
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

3) Other Business

Board discussed setting dates for a summer study session to discuss the 2030
Resource Plan.

4) Adjournment

Motion to adjourn.

11

https://rochestermn.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=264&meta_id=32307


MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consent Agenda

PRESENTER:
Peter Hogan

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Review of Accounts Payable

3.C

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Review the list of consolidated and summarized transactions for 4/11/2023 to 5/9/2023 in the total
amount of $10,669,272.35.

Report Narrative:
Reference the detailed Rochester Public Utilities A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range Report (attached)

Policy Considerations & DEI Impact:
This item is in compliance with Minnesota statute 412.271 requiring all claims to be reviewed by boards
and councils.

Prior Legislative Actions & Community Engagement:
A report is submitted monthly for review.

Fiscal & Resource Impact:
This is for payment of previously approved amounts, through budget or other Board action.

Prepared By:
Christina Bailey

Attachments:
AP Board List Current Month.pdf

12

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1969579/AP_Board_List_Current_Month.pdf


ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

Greater than 50,000 :

1 SOUTHERN MN MUNICIPAL POWER A April SMMPA Bill 7,424,179.80              
2 MN DEPT OF REVENUE March Sales & Use Tax 673,217.89                 
3 CROWN TECHNICAL SYSTEMS Switchgear and Installation 373,468.61                 
4 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY-GAS D March Gas SLP 369,044.44                 
5 KEY BUILDERS INC A-Wing Renovation 143,362.00                 
6 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO 16000FT-Wire, AL, 600V, 350-4/0 NEU YS T 69,500.00                   
7 A & A ELECT & UNDERGROUND CON 2022-23 Directional Boring 86,816.20                   
8 POWELL ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS INC WCS MagneBlast Breaker Replacement Proj 69,625.50                   
9 PAYMENTUS CORPORATION March Electronic Bill Payment Services 65,270.74                   
10 DOXIM UTILITEC LLC March & April Bill Print and Mail Services 64,022.14                   
11 SIEMENS ENERGY INC Tuning Engineer 63,483.00                   
12 ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERT LLC (P) 2023 Hourly Tree Trimming 62,617.76                   
13 HTP ENERGY 12110GAL-Fuel Oil, Gas Turbine 50,619.80                   
14
15 Price Range Total: 9,515,227.88              
16

17 5,000 to 50,000 :
18
19 BURNS & MCDONNELL INC (P) Economic Modeling Update 47,763.85                   
20 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC 8EA-10GBASE-ZR SFP10G MOD FOR SMF 45,713.77                   
21 VIRTUAL PEAKER INC Distributed Energy Platform Services 37,950.00                   
22 IRBY UTILITIES dba 20EA-Metal Sec. Encl,3ph,30" x 67" x 22" 32,800.00                   
23 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY-GAS D March Gas-WES 31,769.73                   
24 PEOPLES ENERGY COOPERATIVE (P April Compensable 26,157.03                   
25 USIC HOLDINGS INC April Locating Services 24,789.83                   
26 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY-GAS D 6488MCF-March Gas-Cascade Creek 22,830.66                   
27 DAVIES PRINTING COMPANY INC 2023 Plugged In Printing Services 22,696.87                   
28 US BANK-VOYAGER April Fuel 22,426.91                   
29 SIEMENS ENERGY INC Controls Engineer 21,484.00                   
30 MEGGER (P) 2EA-Power Multimeter, 3ph 18,061.88                   
31 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC 2EA-CISCO FIREPOWER MAN. CENTER 1600 CHA 17,653.38                   
32 FRANKLIN HEATING STATION CIP-Custom (C&I)-Incentives/Rebates 17,653.14                   
33 NOVASPECT INC Guardian Support and Guardian Device Mgr 16,618.88                   
34 BURNS & MCDONNELL INC (P) Site Selection Study Phase A 16,449.64                   
35 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY (P) 3750FT-Conduit, HDPE, 4", Empty 16,087.50                   
36 CENTURYLINK (P) 2023 Monthly Telecommunications 14,593.43                   
37 VISION COMPANIES LLC (P) Employment Development 13,800.00                   
38 ELEVATE MARKETING SOLUTIONS L March & April 2023 Advertising 13,638.00                   
39 MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY 2022 SLP Annual Emmissions Fee 13,147.25                   
40 HAWKINS INC 2023 Chlorine Gas 12,791.16                   
41 PARK PLACE MOTORS CIP-Lighting (C&I)-Incentives/Rebates 12,791.00                   
42 HAWK & SON'S INC Crane Work - Marion Rd Sub 12,247.88                   
43 NORTHWESTERN POWER EQUIPMENT 3EA-Pressure Reducing Valve, 3" 11,550.00                   
44 ENGINEERED SUPPLY Horizontal Lifeline Install/Engineer MR 10,587.81                   
45 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC Substation Staging and Config Services 10,280.00                   
46 HAWKINS INC 825GAL-2023 Carus 8500 9,856.03                     
47 ROYAL SWITCHGEAR MANU CO 2EA-Switchgear, Royal DEB SW, Live Parts 9,270.00                     
48 CARL BOLANDER & SONS LLC Marion Rd Sub Grading, Excavation, Fence 8,636.33                     
49 HAWKINS INC 16747.5LB-2023 Hydrofluosilicic Acid 8,549.60                     

 PAGE  1 5/22/2023        13



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

50 MALLOY ELECTRIC dba 1EA-VFD, 125/100HP, 460V 8,542.42                     
51 ADVANTAGE SCAFFOLD & LADDERS Installation & Removal-Scaffolding SLP 7,983.56                     
52 JIM WHITING NURSERY/GARDEN CT Arbor Day Tree Planting 7,982.00                     
53 KANTOLA CONSULTING Cayenta, Time of Use & SEW Project Meetings 7,920.00                     
54 NALCO  COMPANY LLC 1DRM-Rinse, Resin 7,756.87                     
55 BAKER TILLY US, LLP 2018-2022 Audit Fees 7,700.00                     
56 EXPRESS  SERVICES INC 2023 Temp Staff Marketing (2) 7,406.44                     
57 IRBY UTILITIES dba 50EA-Arrester,  10kV, Dist, Elbow MOV 7,012.50                     
58 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC 1EA-CISCO FIREPOWER MAN.CENTER(VWAM) FOR 6,974.79                     
59 IRBY UTILITIES dba 48EA-Pedestal, Base, Secondary, w/o Cove 6,480.00                     
60 ROCHESTER TOYOTA CIP-Lighting (C&I)-Incentives/Rebates 6,480.00                     
61 BOILER INSPECTION SERVICES CO NDT Testing on Unit#3 Boiler Tubes 6,400.00                     
62 MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY 2022 CC Annual Emmissions Fee 6,226.71                     
63 POLLARDWATER dba 2EA-Pump, Chemical, Digital Dosing, Grun 6,084.00                     
64 POWER PROS dba Herytage UPS Maintenance 6,005.31                     
65 HALO BRANDED SOLUTIONS (P) Apple Stress Balls-2023 Arbor Day Celebration 5,958.28                     
66 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC 3EA-Metal Sec. Encl, 3ph, 30"x78"x22" 60 5,937.00                     
67 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO 20EA-Elbow, 4", Rigid Steel, 36 Radius, 5,880.00                     
68 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY (P) Conductors for MRS Bus 1 & 2 CPT 5,811.45                     
69 VERIZON WIRELESS 2023 Cell & IPad Monthly Service 5,422.89                     
70 TWIN CITY SECURITY INC 2023 Security Services 5,349.96                     
71 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CO March Gas-WES 5,252.40                     
72 AE2S InfoWater Model 2022 Updates 5,250.00                     
73 J & W INSTRUMENTS INC (P) 4EA-Transmitter, Gas Detection, Honeywell 5,228.00                     
74 DELL MARKETING LP 20EA-Monitor, Computer,27",Dell QHD 5,129.79                     
75
76 Price Range Total: 762,819.93                 
77

78 1,000 to 5,000 :
79
80 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC 13EA-IP Phone, Cisco 8845 4,982.64                     
81 RESCO 1EA-Switch, Air, Unit Arm, 3ph, 600A, LB 4,305.88                     
82 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS d 2022-25 Network and Co-Location Services 4,185.24                     
83 WARTSILA NORTH AMERICA 2EA-Turbo Install Kit, Napier, WES 4,161.34                     
84 HALO BRANDED SOLUTIONS (P) Sunglasses for 2023 Arbor Day Celebration 4,141.41                     
85 SENECA FOODS CORPORATION CIP-VSDs-Incntivs/Rebates 4,005.50                     
86 SUNBELT RENTALS Rental Manlift-SLP Exhaust Fan Repair 3,811.72                     
87 RESCO 20EA-Bracket, Equip Mtg, 3ph, 48", 6 Mtg 3,786.40                     
88 WARTSILA NORTH AMERICA 2EA-CWS Thermostatic Positioner, WES 3,734.72                     
89 BAKER TILLY US, LLP GASB 87 Accounting Services 3,687.50                     
90 NEW LINE MECHANICAL (P) WTB 3" Water Line Repair 3,580.49                     
91 IHEART MEDIA dba Advertising Conserve & Save/Partner in Energy 3,564.00                     
92 FORBROOK LANDSCAPING SERVICES Landscaping Svcs (Electric)2023 3,517.34                     
93 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC 10EA-Grd Sleeve,3ph Encl,18" x 67" x 23" 3,364.80                     
94 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CO Natural Gas-CSC 3,288.83                     
95 BROCK WHITE COMPANY LLC (P) 50EA-SL, Sonotube Forms, 20" x 6' 3,273.58                     
96 RESCO 4ROL-Blanket, Rubber, 1kV, 36" Roll 3,190.22                     
97 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC PRTNR SUP 8X5XNBD CISCO FIREPOWER 3,176.30                     
98 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CO March Gas-SLP 3,164.95                     
99 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC 2000FT-Wire, 1/0, 6/1, ACSR XLP, Almond 3,080.00                     
100 WARTSILA NORTH AMERICA 6EA-CWS Thermostatic Actuator Kit, WES 2,801.04                     

 PAGE  2 5/22/2023        14



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

101 HATHAWAY TREE SERVICE INC Brush Dump 2,800.00                     
102 LRS OF MINNESOTA LLC May 2023 Waste Removal SC 2,783.32                     
103 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC 20EA-Conn, Bolt Lug, Two 1590 AAC, 4 Hol 2,768.00                     
104 NALCO COMPANY LLC (P) 2EA-Trasar 2 Pen Fluorometer 2,652.00                     
105 PREMIER ELECTRICAL CORP dba Warehouse Fans 2,621.64                     
106 PDS Sharepoint Workflows Govern & Support 2,582.50                     
107 MAJESTIC TENTS AND EVENTS dba Arbor Day Tents, Tables & Chairs 2,501.52                     
108 BREDEMUS HARDWARE COMPANY INC American Disabilities Act Door Handles 2,460.26                     
109 RESCO 50EA-Arrester, 10kV, Dist, OH MOV 2,316.00                     
110 AE2S Elec & Mech Design Services Wellhouse 42 2,296.00                     
111 SUNBELT RENTALS Marion Road Sub Telehandler Forklift 2,282.25                     
112 LRS OF MINNESOTA Payment for Utility Easement Rights-SC Project 2,250.00                     
113 MEGGER (P) 1EA-Accessory Kit 2,215.00                     
114 MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY 2022 WES Annual Emmissions Fee 2,174.37                     
115 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC PSS SWSS UPGRADES CISCO FIREPOWER MANAGE 2,102.02                     
116 MIDCONTINENT ISO INC April MISO Fees 2,052.54                     
117 COUILLARD DARREN T CIP-AirSrc Heat Pumps-Incentives/Rebates 2,044.00                     
118 IHEART MEDIA dba March Ads 1,980.00                     
119 IRBY UTILITIES dba 35EA-Bracket, Equip Mtg, 1ph,  1.5" x 18 1,977.50                     
120 US BANK PURCHASING CARD Nexs Software TOU Calculator Subscription 1,923.75                     
121 ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES I April 2023 Utility Exchange Report 1,923.47                     
122 CITY OF ROCHESTER Medical Services 1,914.00                     
123 OSMOSE UTILITIES SERVICES INC O-Calc Maintenance-Software License Renewal 1,904.00                     
124 HI LINE UTILITY SUPPLY CO (P) 7ROL-Pull Tape, 3/4" x 3000', Printed 1,902.56                     
125 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 12EA-Meter, FM2S CL320 240V 2-Way 1,890.92                     
126 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY (P) Materials for MRS Bus 1 & 2 CPT Install 1,873.42                     
127 GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL (P) 4EA-Reel Rack Add-On Unit 1,860.12                     
128 POULSON GARY L CIP-AirSrc Heat Pumps-Incentives/Rebates 1,850.00                     
129 ARCHKEY TECHNOLOGIES dba System Operators HDMI Cable Run 1,850.00                     
130 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO 3150FT-Wire, Copper, #6 SD Solid, Bare 1,836.76                     
131 MEGGER (P) Extended Warranty (24 mos) 1,806.19                     
132 VERIZON CONNECT NWF INC April 2023 Monthly Charge - GPS Fleet Tracking 1,804.33                     
133 CORE & MAIN LP (P) 2EA-Hydrant Ext, 12", WB67 1,777.62                     
134 KFI ENGINEERS Engineering Services UPS 1,760.00                     
135 T E C INDUSTRIAL INC SLP HVAC Fan Motor 1,710.00                     
136 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC SUPPORT CISCO CATALYST C8300 1,660.41                     
137 KATS EXCAVATING LLC FedEx Water Repair 1,625.00                     
138 DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP 24EA-Filter, Air, 20 x 24 x 4, AHU 1 & 2 1,518.99                     
139 DAVIES PRINTING COMPANY INC 25BOX-Envelope, #10, Security Window 1,493.75                     
140 KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES 1EA-Filter, Desiccant, Liquid Fuel Brthr 1,487.50                     
141 UNITED RENTALS INC Forklift Rental 1,484.50                     
142 IRBY UTILITIES dba 12EA-Anchor, 14" P.S., w/Rod & Twineye N 1,476.00                     
143 WARTSILA NORTH AMERICA 6EA-CWS Thermostatic Valve Kit, WES 1,475.94                     
144 PHARMACEUTICAL SPECIALTIES CIP-Lighting (C&I)-Incentives/Rebates 1,433.61                     
145 G A ERNST & ASSOCIATES INC NEC Audits x 13 1,423.75                     
146 IRBY UTILITIES dba 25EA-Bracket, Equip Mtg, 1ph,  1.5" x 18 1,412.50                     
147 GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL (P) 2EA-Reel Rack Starter Unit 1,402.06                     
148 CORE & MAIN LP (P) 50EA-Riser, 2-1/4" Slip Type (65-A) 1,375.00                     
149 CORE & MAIN LP (P) 25EA-Riser, Slip Type (Rite Hite) 1,370.75                     
150 AUTOMATIONDIRECT.COM 3EA-PLC,205 8Ch. Analog Input Card Enclosure 1,326.00                     
151 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CO WES Bldg Heat 1,322.50                     
152 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC 12EA-Conn, Bolt Lug, Two 1590 AAC, 4 Hol 1,315.20                     

 PAGE  3 5/22/2023        15



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

153 DAVE SYVERSON TRUCK CENTER IN Exhaust Kit 1,307.64                     
154 CDF PROPERTIES LLC Customer Refunds 17648 1,280.52                     
155 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC 30EA-Deadend Recept, 15kv, 200A, NLB 1,275.00                     
156 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC April 2023 Phone Interpretation Services 1,269.36                     
157 CORE & MAIN LP (P) 4SET-Flange, Rnd. Thrd. DI, 3" 1,248.00                     
158 MONSON STEVE IFMA Facility Fusion CEU, Lodging 1,209.42                     
159 ROCH PLUMBING & HEATING CO IN Backflow Prevention Testing SLP 1,200.00                     
160 NATIONWIDE DI WATER SOLUTIONS 4EA-DI Vessels, Mixed Bed, CC 1,200.00                     
161 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 6EA-Pedestal, Sec, Plastic w/cover, 10 x 1,192.68                     
162 SOMA CONSTRUCTION INC Class 5 Water Main Break Rock Fill 1,188.63                     
163 ELITE CARD PAYMENT CENTER Rodeo Shirts 1,187.00                     
164 BRAND NATHAN Customer Refunds 17637 1,171.56                     
165 OPEN ACCESS TECHNOLOGY Tag Agent;webSmart 1,169.79                     
166 MEGGER (P) 1JOB-Insulation Tester Repair 1,146.85                     
167 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 20EA-Anchor, Rod, 3/4" x 7', w/Twineye N 1,131.20                     
168 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO 40EA-Coupling, PVC, 5" 1,097.60                     
169 PAGEL ZACHARY CIP-AirSrc Heat Pumps-Incentives/Rebates 1,060.00                     
170 MILESTONE MATERIALS Rock for Marion Road 1,051.30                     
171 KAHALA RESTAURANTS Customer Refunds 17713 1,038.69                     
172 ELITE CARD PAYMENT CENTER Travel,LMeier,SDefrang,Undgrd Sch, Registration 1,030.00                     
173 ROCHESTER ARMORED CAR CO INC 2023 Pick Up Services 1,025.87                     
174 KUEHN MOTOR COMPANY CIP-Lighting (C&I)-Incentives/Rebates 1,006.00                     
175 CENTER FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRON Multi-Family Program-Market Rate w/MERC 1,002.49                     
176
177 Price Range Total: 202,343.02                 
178

179 0 to 1,000 :
180
181 REBATES Summarized transactions: 82 18,261.71                   
182 CUSTOMER REFUNDS (CIS) Summarized transactions: 92 11,564.15                   
183 ELITE CARD PAYMENT CENTER Summarized transactions: 33 9,257.86                     
184 FIRST CLASS PLUMBING & HEATIN Summarized transactions: 17 7,731.56                     
185 IRBY UTILITIES dba Summarized transactions: 27 7,128.25                     
186 CORE & MAIN LP (P) Summarized transactions: 19 5,183.19                     
187 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC (P) Summarized transactions: 17 4,575.39                     
188 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY (P) Summarized transactions: 18 4,402.25                     
189 US BANK PURCHASING CARD Summarized transactions: 38 4,369.23                     
190 CITY LAUNDERING COMPANY Summarized transactions: 20 3,921.88                     
191 AUTOMATIONDIRECT.COM Summarized transactions: 12 3,905.50                     
192 CENTER FOR ENERGY AND ENVIRON Summarized transactions: 8 2,914.71                     
193 U S A SAFETY SUPPLY Summarized transactions: 25 2,906.40                     
194 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO Summarized transactions: 18 2,804.18                     
195 UNITED RENTALS INC Summarized transactions: 6 2,568.83                     
196 GARCIA GRAPHICS INC Summarized transactions: 8 2,435.00                     
197 HAWKINS INC Summarized transactions: 6 2,375.24                     
198 DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP Summarized transactions: 14 2,256.66                     
199 HALL SHAUN Summarized transactions: 6 2,243.43                     
200 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CO Summarized transactions: 5 2,083.08                     
201 CITY OF ROCHESTER Summarized transactions: 5 1,959.11                     
202 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY Summarized transactions: 9 1,924.94                     
203 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC Summarized transactions: 5 1,889.28                     

 PAGE  4 5/22/2023        16



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

204 CDW GOVERNMENT INC Summarized transactions: 14 1,889.20                     
205 MONSON STEVE Summarized transactions: 6 1,867.32                     
206 GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL (P) Summarized transactions: 11 1,709.82                     
207 FASTENAL COMPANY Summarized transactions: 25 1,444.61                     
208 NORTHERN / BLUETARP FINANCIAL Summarized transactions: 9 1,373.45                     
209 SANCO ENTERPRISES Summarized transactions: 6 1,358.29                     
210 NORTH CENTRAL INTERNATIONAL L Summarized transactions: 4 1,330.39                     
211 LRS OF MINNESOTA LLC Summarized transactions: 2 1,327.98                     
212 MUELLER MATTHEW Summarized transactions: 3 1,284.08                     
213 PEOPLES ENERGY COOPERATIVE Summarized transactions: 6 1,258.34                     
214 K A A L  TV LLC Summarized transactions: 2 1,175.00                     
215 CENTURYLINK (P) Summarized transactions: 6 1,159.86                     
216 MEGGER (P) Summarized transactions: 5 1,094.93                     
217 HALO BRANDED SOLUTIONS (P) Summarized transactions: 4 1,082.31                     
218 ON SITE SANITATION INC Summarized transactions: 4 1,063.51                     
219 T E C INDUSTRIAL INC Summarized transactions: 2 1,035.64                     
220 WASHINGTON ENERGY LAW LLP Summarized transactions: 2 1,021.00                     
221 MALLOY ELECTRIC dba Summarized transactions: 2 984.34                        
222 RESCO Summarized transactions: 4 969.61                        
223 ICE MELT MALL Summarized transactions: 2 932.60                        
224 MED CITY PAINTING & DECORATIN Summarized transactions: 2 925.00                        
225 MED-CITY LOCK Summarized transactions: 2 908.25                        
226 PAUL MAYASICH MUSIC Summarized transactions: 1 900.00                        
227 SEEME PRODUCTIONS LLC Summarized transactions: 1 895.00                        
228 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC (P) Summarized transactions: 2 892.50                        
229 TOWNE MELANI Summarized transactions: 3 882.14                        
230 THE ENERGY AUTHORITY INC Summarized transactions: 1 852.37                        
231 PEOPLES ENERGY COOPERATIVE Summarized transactions: 4 830.23                        
232 NETWORK SERVICES COMPANY Summarized transactions: 6 825.07                        
233 MILESTONE MATERIALS Summarized transactions: 2 806.67                        
234 CITY OF ROCHESTER Summarized transactions: 1 798.00                        
235 MENARDS ROCHESTER NORTH Summarized transactions: 16 781.38                        
236 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS Summarized transactions: 18 775.78                        
237 BOLTON AND MENK (P) Summarized transactions: 2 772.00                        
238 KROC FM/AM Summarized transactions: 1 770.00                        
239 ZIEGLER INC Summarized transactions: 1 758.77                        
240 VAN METER INC dba Summarized transactions: 8 756.65                        
241 POMPS TIRE SERVICE INC Summarized transactions: 1 754.11                        
242 TRAUT COMPANIES Summarized transactions: 1 750.00                        
243 REINDERS INC Summarized transactions: 4 741.42                        
244 SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION INC Summarized transactions: 4 733.82                        
245 MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY Summarized transactions: 2 725.33                        
246 CENTURYLINK Summarized transactions: 1 718.97                        
247 HACH COMPANY Summarized transactions: 2 714.57                        
248 LITTLE DAVID Summarized transactions: 3 713.60                        
249 SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR COMPANY Summarized transactions: 1 695.57                        
250 VERIZON WIRELESS Summarized transactions: 2 673.94                        
251 CITY LAUNDERING COMPANY Summarized transactions: 4 661.30                        
252 KENDELL DOORS & HARDWARE INC Summarized transactions: 1 657.28                        
253 DIGI-KEY CORPORATION Summarized transactions: 2 651.43                        
254 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO INC Summarized transactions: 9 650.36                        
255 CORPORATE WEB SERVICES INC Summarized transactions: 1 632.04                        

 PAGE  5 5/22/2023        17



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

256 AT&T Summarized transactions: 1 623.61                        
257 GRAINGER INC Summarized transactions: 17 612.89                        
258 BARR ENGINEERING COMPANY (P) Summarized transactions: 2 597.50                        
259 ARNOLDS A KLEEN-TECH COMPANY Summarized transactions: 13 596.96                        
260 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC Summarized transactions: 5 594.74                        
261 MILESTONE MATERIALS Summarized transactions: 2 574.56                        
262 BENSON ANTHONY Summarized transactions: 1 566.80                        
263 ROCHESTER CHEVROLET CADILLAC Summarized transactions: 6 562.78                        
264 HAWKINS INC Summarized transactions: 4 544.83                        
265 COREY THOMPSON Summarized transactions: 1 541.69                        
266 OSMOSE UTILITIES SERVICES INC Summarized transactions: 2 514.68                        
267 NAPA AUTO PARTS dba Summarized transactions: 8 512.23                        
268 EMEDCO INC Summarized transactions: 4 510.83                        
269 JASPER ENGINEERING & EQUIP CO Summarized transactions: 7 508.29                        
270 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY (P) Summarized transactions: 5 502.80                        
271 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS L Summarized transactions: 3 500.16                        
272 LAKE ZUMBRO FOREVER INC Summarized transactions: 1 500.00                        
273 ROYAL SWITCHGEAR MANU CO Summarized transactions: 1 500.00                        
274 CRW ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN GRO Summarized transactions: 1 500.00                        
275 ALTEC INDUSTRIES INC Summarized transactions: 4 492.15                        
276 ANCOM COMMUNICATIONS INC Summarized transactions: 1 490.00                        
277 SIMON MOBILE DIESEL REPAIR Summarized transactions: 1 463.95                        
278 PDS Summarized transactions: 1 461.25                        
279 VEIT & CO INC (CONSTRUCTION) Summarized transactions: 1 458.49                        
280 BADGER METER INC (P) Summarized transactions: 2 450.64                        
281 HDR ENGINEERING INC Summarized transactions: 1 426.12                        
282 ULTEIG ENGINEERS INC Summarized transactions: 1 420.00                        
283 APPLIED AIR SYSTEMS INC Summarized transactions: 2 402.67                        
284 POLLARDWATER dba Summarized transactions: 1 394.00                        
285 PEOPLES ENERGY COOPERATIVE (P Summarized transactions: 2 390.00                        
286 STEVEN J ELLIOTT Summarized transactions: 1 374.06                        
287 NICKELS SCOTT Summarized transactions: 1 372.82                        
288 WARTSILA NORTH AMERICA Summarized transactions: 9 365.06                        
289 CHS ROCHESTER Summarized transactions: 2 345.91                        
290 RDO EQUIPMENT COMPANY (P) Summarized transactions: 1 345.14                        
291 EPLUS TECHNOLOGY INC Summarized transactions: 1 342.56                        
292 GDS ASSOCIATES INC Summarized transactions: 1 330.00                        
293 G A ERNST & ASSOCIATES INC Summarized transactions: 1 329.18                        
294 LOCATORS AND SUPPLIES Summarized transactions: 3 322.52                        
295 THOMPSON GARAGE DOOR CO INC Summarized transactions: 1 321.69                        
296 WSB & ASSOCIATES Summarized transactions: 1 320.00                        
297 TRUCKIN' AMERICA Summarized transactions: 1 318.49                        
298 HARMONY ENTERPRISES INC Summarized transactions: 1 315.00                        
299 ROCH PLUMBING & HEATING CO IN Summarized transactions: 1 308.16                        
300 VALERE MIKKI Summarized transactions: 2 298.18                        
301 VERIFIED CREDENTIALS, LLC Summarized transactions: 1 292.00                        
302 SCHUMACHER EXCAVATING INC. Summarized transactions: 1 280.00                        
303 FEDEX SHIPPING Summarized transactions: 14 277.90                        
304 MISSISSIPPI WELDERS SUPPLY CO Summarized transactions: 5 273.80                        
305 C & N UPHOLSTERY Summarized transactions: 2 270.00                        
306 WIESE USA INC Summarized transactions: 1 260.00                        
307 NALCO COMPANY LLC (P) Summarized transactions: 2 254.47                        

 PAGE  6 5/22/2023        18



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

308 PROPERTY RECORDS OLMSTED COUN Summarized transactions: 3 246.00                        
309 DAVE SYVERSON TRUCK CENTER IN Summarized transactions: 4 235.45                        
310 ALTERNATIVE TECHNOLOGIES INC Summarized transactions: 4 220.00                        
311 KAUTZ TRAILER SALES INC Summarized transactions: 2 216.25                        
312 FARRELL EQUIPMENT (P) Summarized transactions: 1 213.74                        
313 NUVERA Summarized transactions: 1 211.63                        
314 VANCO SERVICES LLC Summarized transactions: 1 210.00                        
315 FIRST SUPPLY (P) Summarized transactions: 4 205.09                        
316 IVAN IDSO Summarized transactions: 1 200.00                        
317 KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES Summarized transactions: 2 192.91                        
318 McGRANN SHEA CARNIVAL STRAUGH Summarized transactions: 1 192.50                        
319 WATER SYSTEMS COMPANY Summarized transactions: 2 192.30                        
320 SCHMIDT GOODMAN OFFICE PRODUC Summarized transactions: 1 190.07                        
321 HI LINE UTILITY SUPPLY CO (P) Summarized transactions: 1 181.92                        
322 NALCO  COMPANY LLC Summarized transactions: 7 179.15                        
323 DAVIES PRINTING COMPANY INC Summarized transactions: 3 172.67                        
324 ELITE CARD PAYMENT CENTER Summarized transactions: 1 170.17                        
325 METRO SALES INC Summarized transactions: 1 170.00                        
326 SOMA CONSTRUCTION INC Summarized transactions: 2 168.72                        
327 FORT THOMAS Summarized transactions: 1 160.00                        
328 FARRELL EQUIPMENT (P) Summarized transactions: 1 159.99                        
329 OSWEILER TODD Summarized transactions: 1 159.60                        
330 HANNA INSTRUMENTS INC Summarized transactions: 3 158.39                        
331 MENARDS ROCHESTER NORTH Summarized transactions: 1 156.70                        
332 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES OLMST Summarized transactions: 1 156.55                        
333 HTP ENERGY Summarized transactions: 4 155.76                        
334 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS Summarized transactions: 1 154.60                        
335 POWER PROCESS EQUIPMENT INC ( Summarized transactions: 3 154.60                        
336 MCMASTER CARR SUPPLY COMPANY Summarized transactions: 6 153.11                        
337 CASTILLO ROB Summarized transactions: 1 150.00                        
338 MITSUBISHI POWER AERO LLC (P) Summarized transactions: 4 149.04                        
339 DITCH WITCH OF MINNESOTA INC Summarized transactions: 2 137.48                        
340 NORTHERN / BLUETARP FINANCIAL Summarized transactions: 2 135.96                        
341 USA BLUE BOOK dba Summarized transactions: 3 129.24                        
342 FASTENAL COMPANY Summarized transactions: 1 120.64                        
343 MCFARLAND JESSE Summarized transactions: 3 119.18                        
344 NORTH STAR ALUM/ROCHESTER WEL Summarized transactions: 1 117.56                        
345 MAJESTIC TENTS AND EVENTS dba Summarized transactions: 2 103.86                        
346 RONCO ENGINEERING SALES INC Summarized transactions: 2 101.74                        
347 SHONES JACOB Summarized transactions: 1 96.00                          
348 MASON JOSH Summarized transactions: 1 96.00                          
349 ADVANTAGE SCAFFOLD & LADDERS Summarized transactions: 2 93.38                          
350 TOTAL RESTAURANT SUPPLY Summarized transactions: 1 92.32                          
351 BOB THE BUG MAN LLC Summarized transactions: 2 87.58                          
352 SLEEPY EYE TELEPHONE CO Summarized transactions: 1 84.76                          
353 NATIONWIDE DI WATER SOLUTIONS Summarized transactions: 1 82.50                          
354 CREDIT MANAGEMENT LP Summarized transactions: 1 80.90                          
355 STAR ENERGY SERVICES LLC Summarized transactions: 1 80.00                          
356 HIGHUM JODY Summarized transactions: 1 78.81                          
357 REBATES Summarized transactions: 3 75.00                          
358 GOODIN COMPANY Summarized transactions: 3 69.95                          
359 DELL MARKETING LP Summarized transactions: 1 60.00                          

 PAGE  7 5/22/2023        19



ROCHESTER  PUBLIC  UTILITIES
    A/P Board Listing By Dollar Range

For 04/11/2023 To 05/09/2023
Consolidated & Summarized Below 1,000

360 MOTION INDUSTRIES INC Summarized transactions: 5 55.40                          
361 SNAP ON INDUSTRIAL Summarized transactions: 1 44.98                          
362 FORUM COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY Summarized transactions: 1 41.86                          
363 EARLS SMALL ENGINE REPAIR INC Summarized transactions: 3 41.64                          
364 MENARDS ROCHESTER SOUTH Summarized transactions: 1 37.35                          
365 ARROW HARDWARE & PAINT (P) Summarized transactions: 1 36.11                          
366 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CO Summarized transactions: 1 31.84                          
367 FEDEX SHIPPING Summarized transactions: 2 31.36                          
368 DONAHUE DEBRA Summarized transactions: 1 28.48                          
369 KOTSCHEVAR MARK Summarized transactions: 1 26.97                          
370 KLUG JERROD Summarized transactions: 1 22.82                          
371 MENARDS ROCHESTER SOUTH Summarized transactions: 1 18.41                          
372 GREAT RIVER ENERGY Summarized transactions: 2 12.28                          
373 U S BANK Summarized transactions: 1 9.00                            
374 PROLINE DISTRIBUTORS Summarized transactions: 2 4.03                            

Price Range Total: 188,881.52                 

Grand Total: 10,669,272.35            

 PAGE  8 5/22/2023        20



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consent Agenda

PRESENTER:
Phil Teng

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Annual Cayenta Maintenance 2023

3.D

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Approve the invoice payment to N. Harris Computer Corporation in the amount of $206,512.41, plus
applicable tax, for annual maintenance and support.

Report Narrative:
The annual maintenance fees for the Cayenta software, RPU's customer information and billing system,
renew on June 30, 2022. The cost of this routine annual renewal is $206,512.41, plus applicable tax and
allows us to receive updates and software support to keep our system current and updated. Staff
recommends approval.

Fiscal & Resource Impact:
This cost is within the amount approved in the 2023 budget.

Prepared By:
Phil Teng

Attachments:
20230530 Resolution - 2023 Annual Cayenta Maintenance.docx

21

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1972464/20230530_Resolution_-_2023_Annual_Cayenta_Maintenance.pdf


  

R E S O L U T I O N

      BE IT RESOLVED by the Public Utility Board of the City of Rochester to approve the 
invoice payment to N. Harris Computer Corporation in the amount of $206,512.41, 
plus applicable tax, for Cayenta annual maintenance and support.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF

ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA, THIS 30th DAY OF MAY, 2023.

     

___________________________________
PRESIDENT 

___________________________________
SECRETARY

22



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consent Agenda

PRESENTER:
Mona Hoeft

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Painting of Gas Turbine #2 (GT-2) - Project # 2023-08

3.E

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Authorize an agreement with Sorensen & Sorensen Painting and Decorating, Inc. in the amount of
$162,500.00 for the painting of GT-2 and approve a 10% contingency funding of $16,250.00. Approval of
this action also authorizes the RPU Project Manager to perform the acts to execute the project. 

Report Narrative:
Four bids were received for painting GT-2, located at the Cascade Creek Substation. This unit was
installed in early 2000 and is starting to show signs of peeling paint and rust, suggesting this is the right
time for a fresh coat of paint. This project includes the gas turbine, ladders, catwalks, safety railings,
control building and other accessory items. The project is expected to be completed before the end of
the year.
 
The RPU team has no concerns with Sorensen & Sorensen's ability to perform the project successfully. 
The results of the solicitation are attached.

Fiscal & Resource Impact:
The 2023 budget included $250,000 for this project.

Prepared By:
Mona Hoeft

Attachments:
Bid Tab - GT-2 Painting
Draft Agreement - GT-2 Painting
20230530 Resolution - Painting of Gas Turbine #2 GT2.docx

23

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1965628/Bid_Tab.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1965581/23-88_Sorensen___Sorensen_GT2_Painting.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1972467/20230530_Resolution_-_Painting_of_Gas_Turbine__2_GT2.pdf


Project: GT-2 Painting

Bid Opening: 5.19.23

Project # 2023-08

PROPOSER Gas Turbine Lube Oil Skid 1 Lube Oil Skid 2 Starter Skid Control Building Total

Sorensen and Sorensen 125,000.00$      8,500.00$          8,500.00$          8,500.00$          12,000.00$        162,500.00$   

Osseo Construction 161,500.00$      7,000.00$          7,000.00$          1,900.00$          17,000.00$        194,400.00$   

Elevation Coating 119,950.00$      20,000.00$        20,000.00$        10,000.00$        30,000.00$        199,950.00$   

TMI Coatings 191,000.00$      19,000.00$        19,000.00$        13,000.00$        42,000.00$        284,000.00$   

K:\RPU\Purchasing\Drop Box\2023-08 RFB GT-2 Painting\Bid TabBid TabSheet1 24



Contract Signature Page
Gas Turbine Painting (GT-2)

Solicitation #2023-08

Contract Number: 23-88
Contractor Name: Sorensen and Sorensen Painting and Decorating, Inc.
Contractor Address: 2038 15th St NW, Rochester MN 55901
Contract Price: $162,500

The contract documents as provided in the solicitation form the entire agreement between 
the parties and all contract documents are as fully a part of the agreement as if attached 
hereto or herein repeated. The hierarchy of contract documents is listed in order of 
precedence.

The contract documents shall consist of the following:

Contract Signature Page
IFB and General Terms and Conditions
Technical Specifications including any/all addendums and Special Terms, Division S
Prevailing Wage, Workforce and Targeted Business Requirements
Instructions to Bidders
Contractor’s Proposal, Bid Form Supplement and Technical Exceptions
Approved Change Orders
Responsible Contractor Certificate and Supplemental Certificate
Personnel Risk Assessment Form
Contractor Safety Acknowledgement
Purchase Order
Insurance Certificate
SDE Form, if applicable

SORENSEN & SORENSEN PAINTING AND 
DECORATING, INC. CITY OF ROCHESTER

________________________________ ________________________________
Mike Sorensen Kim Norton, Mayor 

Attest 
________________________________
Kelly K. Geistler, City Clerk

Approved as to Form:

________________________________
Michael Spindler-Krage, City Attorney

25



ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

________________________________
Mark Kotschevar, General Manager

26



  

R E S O L U T I O N

      BE IT RESOLVED by the Public Utility Board of the City of Rochester to authorize an 
agreement with Sorensen & Sorensen Painting and Decorating, Inc. in the amount of 
$162,500.00 for the painting of GT-2 and approve a 10% contingency funding of 
$16,250.00. Approval of this action also authorizes the RPU Project Manager to 
perform the acts to execute the project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF

ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA, THIS 30th DAY OF MAY, 2023.

     

___________________________________
PRESIDENT 

___________________________________
SECRETARY

27



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consent Agenda

PRESENTER:
Mona Hoeft

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Bid Rejection for Construction of Wellhouse #42 -
Project #2023-06

3.F

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Approve a resolution rejecting the wellhouse bid from Alvin E. Benike, Inc.

Report Narrative:
One bid, valued at $773,573, was received from Alvin E. Benike, Inc. to build wellhouse #42. The bid
exceeds the engineers estimate by $225,000. This solicitation drew a fair amount of interest, but resulted
in just one bid. Staff conducted outreach and found that the response time was a bit short, and one
proposer felt they were taking on too much risk for the types of electrical components specified, which
continue to experience shortages and undependable lead times. The specifications also required the
contractor to procure the motor control center, which has an estimated 70 week lead time.  
 
The RPU team recommends the rejection of this bid and will re-scope the project to include components
that are readily available along with procuring the motor control center directly. The new solicitation
results will be presented at the June meeting.
 

Prepared By:
Mona Hoeft

Attachments:
20230530 Resolution - Bid Rejection for Construction of Well House #42.docx

28

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1972468/20230530_Resolution_-_Bid_Rejection_for_Construction_of_Well_House__42.pdf


  

R E S O L U T I O N

      BE IT RESOLVED by the Public Utility Board of the City of Rochester to approve a 
resolution rejecting the bid from Alvin E. Benike, Inc. for the construction of Well House 
#42.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF

ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA, THIS 30th DAY OF MAY, 2023.

     

___________________________________
PRESIDENT 

___________________________________
SECRETARY

29



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Consideration of Bids

PRESENTER:
Steven Cook, Mona Hoeft

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Marion Road Substation Budget Update and
Electrical Duct Bank Project Bids (Project #2023-05)

 

 

 

Action Requested:
 
Senior Electrical Engineer Steve Cook will provide a brief summary of the Marion Road Substation and
Electrical Duct Bank Project with status of deliverables. The Board is also asked to authorize an
agreement with Veit & Company, Inc. in the amount of $13,954,839.41 for the Marion Road - Mayo Clinic
Underground Distribution Project and approve contingency funding of $2,790,967.88. Approval of this
action also authorizes the RPU Project Manager to perform the acts to execute the project. 
 
 
 

Report Narrative:
Rochester Public Utilities has been working on the installation of a new electrical substation to serve
electrical load in SE Rochester and into downtown Rochester. The substation is located on Marion Road
near the intersection of 14th Street SE. In addition to the electrical substation, three concrete encased
duct banks are being installed, along an approximate 2 mile route from the Marion Road Substation into
downtown, with this phase ending around 5th Street and 4th Ave SW. Also associated with this project is
some transmission work to split one of our transmission lines and provide two transmission sources for
this new substation and the installation of fiber optic circuits for communications for relay coordination
and utility network communications.
 
Substation Status: Most major equipment is on site or in RPU controlled storage locations. Both
substation transformers were delivered the week of May 15th.
 
Transmission Status: All material has been delivered and the majority of the work is complete. The
remaining work involves setting two transmission poles between the existing transmission line and the
substation and stringing in the 4 spans that make up the two substation transmission taps. This work will
be scheduled once the substation is ready for energization.
 
Distribution Duct Bank Status: The 2nd Ave and 5th Street SW segments of the duct bank project are
complete. The 9th Street SE segment is currently under construction, and bids were received for the
"Park" segment, which will be discussed later.
 
Fiber Optic Status: Conduit for part of the fiber optic cable installation is included with the duct bank
installations, and staff is working through DNR permitting and easements for the remaining segments.
Fiber optic cable and conduits for the remainder of this project are currently in RPU controlled storage.
 
Budget Status: See attached document which shows current knowns plus estimates having the project

30



coming in approximately $4.4 million under the approved budget.
 
Construction of the duct banks is set to begin this summer and sealed bids were received on May 10,
2023. As part of this project, the duct banks will be installed through three parks, and necessitate the
replacement of two foot bridges. Veit & Company, Inc. submitted a responsive and responsible bid, have
performed well in the past, and the RPU team has no concerns with their ability to perform.
 
On behalf of Park and Recreation, RPU included alternate pricing for resurfacing the existing parking lots
within each impacted park. Park and Recreation has accepted and approved these additional costs.
 
The work is expected to be complete by December 31, 2024. The results of the solicitation are attached.

Policy Considerations & DEI Impact:
This is RPU's first capital project that requires compliance with prevailing wage, workforce (15% minority
and 9% female), and targeted business (4%) goals as directed by the Council in 2021. Veit has
completed several projects with similar requirements throughout the state and is expected to meet or
exceed all council approved goals.

Fiscal & Resource Impact:
The engineers estimate was about $15 million for construction of this segment, which did not include the
park alternates. Mayo will be contributing 60% of the costs, excluding the park alternates and a small
segment of water main upsizing that is included as part of this project.
 

Prepared By:
Mona Hoeft

Attachments:
Marion Road Project Budget Status as of 05232023.pdf
Bid Tab - Marion Road Underground Distribution Bids
Draft Agreement - Underground Distribution Project
20230530 Resolution - Marion Road Substation Electrical Duct Bank Project Bids.docx

31

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1970010/Marion_Road_Project_Budget_Status_as_of_05232023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1961183/Bid_Tab.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1961233/23-48_Contract_Signature_Page.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1972505/20230530_Resolution_-_Marion_Road_Substation_Electrical_Duct_Bank_Project_Bids.pdf


Item Description Dollars

Project Budget-External $53,724,914.00

Expenditures to Date $14,930,445.59

Open Commitments $12,550,396.50

Authorized Contingencies $2,112,501.50

Budget Remaining (Based on existing commitments) $24,131,570.41

Identified Additional External Costs

Communication Connections - Estimate $1,200,000.00

ArcShoot remediation Estimate $80,000.00

Phase 3 Duct Bank, Parks Construction $16,745,807.29

Phase 3 Duct Bank, Construction Management & Testing (estimate) $1,674,580.73

Budget Remaining - Estimate $4,431,182.39

Marion Road Substation & Associated Projects Budget Overview May 2023

32



Project:
Bid Opening: 5.10.23

PROPOSER A total B total C total D total E total F total
Phase 4 

Electrical
Grand total Alternate 1 Parks

Veit 2,595,818.15$    130,040.00$   $11,602.00 $100,159.01 851,114.65$       798,511.50$       $9,362,266.60 13,849,511.91$  $105,327.50

Elcor 2,732,595.00$    155,050.00$   $8,899.00 $157,556.00 1,237,862.00$    1,335,919.00$    $10,156,980.00 15,784,861.00$  $125,320.00

Michels 3,364,324.92$    125,683.89$   $31,909.78 $235,228.37 1,239,100.34$    1,336,614.61$    $16,613,172.61 22,946,034.52$  $202,037.30

2023-05 Marion Road - Mayo Clinic Duct Bank

K:\RPU\Purchasing\Drop Box\2023-05 IFB Marion Road-Mayo Clinic Underground Distribution\Bid TabBid TabSheet1

33



Contract Signature Page
Marion Road-Mayo Clinic Underground Distribution

Solicitation #2023-05

Contract Number: 23-48
Contractor Name: Veit & Company, Inc.
Contractor Address: 14000 Veit Place, Rogers MN 55374
Contract Price: $13,954,839.41

The contract documents as provided in the solicitation form the entire agreement between 
the parties and all contract documents are as fully a part of the agreement as if attached 
hereto or herein repeated. The hierarchy of contract documents is listed in order of 
precedence.

The contract documents shall consist of the following:

Contract Signature Page
IFB and General Terms and Conditions
Technical Specifications including any/all addendums and Special Terms, Division S
Prevailing Wage, Workforce and Targeted Business Requirements
Instructions to Bidders
Contractor’s Proposal, Bid Form Supplement and Technical Exceptions
Approved Change Orders
Responsible Contractor Certificate and Supplemental Certificate
Personnel Risk Assessment Form
Contractor Safety Acknowledgement
Purchase Order
Insurance Certificate
SDE Form, if applicable

VEIT & COMPANY, INC. CITY OF ROCHESTER

________________________________ ________________________________
Steven J. Hedtke, CFO Kim Norton, Mayor 

Attest 
________________________________
Kelly K. Geistler, City Clerk

Approved as to Form:

________________________________
Michael Spindler-Krage, City Attorney

ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

________________________________
Mark Kotschevar, General Manager

34



  

R E S O L U T I O N

BE IT RESOLVED by the Public Utility Board of the City of Rochester to authorize an 
agreement with Veit & Company, Inc. in the amount of $13,954,839.41 for the 
Marion Road - Mayo Clinic Underground Distribution Project and approve 
contingency funding of $2,790,967.88. Approval of this action also authorizes the 
RPU Project Manager to perform the acts to execute the project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF

ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA, THIS 30th DAY OF MAY, 2023.

     

___________________________________
PRESIDENT 

___________________________________
SECRETARY

35



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Regular Agenda

PRESENTER:
Mark Kotschevar

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Election of Officers

4.A

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Election of the Board President, Vice-President and appointment of the Board Secretary

Report Narrative:
Under the existing Board Organization Policy, the Board has designated the first regular meeting in May
for the election of officers. This includes the President, Vice-President, and appointment of the Board
Secretary.

Policy Considerations & DEI Impact:
This is consistent with the approved Board Organization policy. One item of note is the policy states only
Board members whose terms will not expire prior to the next election are eligible for election.

Prepared By:
Mark Kotschevar

Attachments:

36



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Informational

PRESENTER:
Doug Eagle (Util-Assist) and
Scott Nickels

REQUEST FOR ACTION

AMI, MDM and Meter Install Procurements - RFP
Analysis and Project Status Report

5.A

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Informational only, no action requested

Report Narrative:
Staff from RPU and Consultant Util-Assist will provide an informational presentation on RPU’s Advanced
Metering Infrastructure (AMI), Meter Data Management (MDM), and Meter Installation procurement
projects. Topics of the discussion will include the Request for Proposal (RFP) process overview, RFP
analysis results, vendor recommendations, justification for each project component, and solution
budgeting requirements.

Prior Legislative Actions & Community Engagement:
AMI, MDM and Meter Install Procurements - Project Status Report, 11/29/2022

Prepared By:
Scott Nickels

Attachments:
RPU AMI Implementation Project Plan May24

37

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1971966/RPU_AMI_Implementation_Project_Plan_May24.pdf


  

  

  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rochester Public Utilities  

Advanced Metering Infrastructure Implementation 
Project Plan 

 

 

May 24, 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

  

_________________________________ 

 

 

38



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   2 

T a b l e  o f  C o n ten t s  

Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................... 4  

1 Overview Information .................................................................................................................................................... 5  

1.1 Overview of Existing Electric & Water Metering Methods ........................................................................................ 5 

1.2 Overview of State of the Industry for Metering Technology ..................................................................................... 5 

1.3 Overview of RPU’s AMI Project ................................................................................................................................ 7 

1.3.1 Intended Project Outcomes ................................................................................................................................. 7 

1.3.2 AMI Implementation Scenarios for Electric and Water ....................................................................................... 7 

1.3.3 Summary of Complete AMI Solution ................................................................................................................... 8 

1.3.3.1 Integration ................................................................................................................................................... 9 

1.3.4 MDM System ....................................................................................................................................................... 9  

1.3.5 Meter Field Installations ...................................................................................................................................... 9 

1.3.5.1 Electric Installations ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

1.3.5.2 Water Installations ..................................................................................................................................... 10  

1.3.5.3 Network Device Installations ..................................................................................................................... 10  

1.3.6 AMI Phases and Use Cases ............................................................................................................................. 10  

1.3.6.1 Phase 1: Meter to Cash ............................................................................................................................ 10  

1.3.6.2 Phase 2: Advanced Features .................................................................................................................... 10  

1.3.6.3 Phase 3: Future Use Cases ...................................................................................................................... 11  

1.3.7 High-Level Project Schedule ............................................................................................................................. 12  

2 Background of Consultants and Past Reports ......................................................................................................... 14  

2.1 Initial Business Case .............................................................................................................................................. 14  

2.1.1 Post RFP Cost Review ...................................................................................................................................... 14  

2.1.2 Difference Between Business Case Costs and Post-RFP Costs ..................................................................... 15 

2.2 Upcoming Consultant Services .............................................................................................................................. 16  

2.2.1 Negotiations and Contract Development Support ............................................................................................. 16  

2.2.2 Project Management for Solutions Implementation .......................................................................................... 16 

3 AMI Project Procurement Activities ........................................................................................................................... 17  

3.1 Requirements and Specifications Development ..................................................................................................... 17  

3.2 AMI, MDM, and Installation RFPs and Proponents ................................................................................................ 17  

3.3 Evaluation of Proposals .......................................................................................................................................... 18  

3.3.1 AMI RFP Evaluation .......................................................................................................................................... 19  

3.3.1.1 AMI Vendor Recommendation .................................................................................................................. 20 

39



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   3 

3.3.2 MDM RFP Evaluation ........................................................................................................................................ 20  

3.3.2.1 MDM Proponent Recommendation ........................................................................................................... 21  

3.3.3 Installation Services RFP Evaluation ................................................................................................................ 21  

3.3.3.1 Field Installation Proponent Recommendation ......................................................................................... 22 

4 Resourcing and Staffing ............................................................................................................................................. 23  

4.1 Resource Descriptions ............................................................................................................................................ 23  

5 Summary of Project Costs .......................................................................................................................................... 24  

5.1 Impact to Customer Bills ......................................................................................................................................... 24  

 

  

40



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   4 

 

 

  

Introduction
This  AMI  Implementation  Project  Plan  outlines  Rochester  Public  Utilities’  (RPU)  initial  planning  and  budgeting  for  the
implementation  of  advanced  metering  infrastructure  (AMI)  and  meter  data  management  system  (MDM).  This  document
along with a slide presentation summarizing its key information will be presented to the RPU Board with the goal of getting 
input and providing information for a decision at a future Board meeting The document covers the following information:

 An overview of the AMI project and its components

 Background  information on the work that  has been completed, and work that  will be performed in the  future, by 
consultants,  including  the  companies  E  Source  and  Util-Assist  (e.g.,  AMI  business  case  creation  and  revision,
contract negotiation, and project management for solution implementation)

 A summary of the AMI procurement activities, including the development of requests for proposals (RFPs) for AMI,
MDM,  and  field  installation  services,  and  the  recommended  vendors  for  these  solutions  resulting  from  the  RFP 
processes

 A summary of RPU resourcing required for the AMI project implementation and ongoing operations of the AMI and 
MDM systems

 A preliminary project schedule for the implementation of the AMI and future phases and initiatives

 A summary of estimated total project costs

This document and its inputs were developed by the RPU AMI project team in collaboration with consultants from Util-Assist
Inc., a consulting firm specializing in helping North American utilities procure and implement AMI and related systems. Some
information and the preliminary business case analysis was drawn from the E Source business case financial model and
the associated report E Source created in 2021, titled,  Advanced Metering Infrastructure Assessment and Business Case
Report for Rochester Public Utilities.

41



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   5 

1  Overv iew Informat ion  

1 . 1  O v e r v i e w  o f  E x i s t i n g  E l e c t r i c  &  W a t e r  M e t e r i n g  M e t h o d s  

The currently available, “next generation” of AMI metering provides a communication medium that leverages open 
standards-based communication to ensure interoperability of additional systems and applications. These capabilities allow 
utilities to respond to new challenges, expectations, and opportunities within their service territories. 

AMI technology has become the new norm and is the dominant metering technology across North America. As of 2021, the 
U.S. Energy Information Administration estimated that approximately 75% of American households had electric smart 
meters, with about 103 million total electric smart meters installed across the country1, and Natural Resources Canada 
estimated that ~90% of electric meters in Canada were smart meters as well (including both AMI and AMR meters)2. As 
older drive-by AMR systems and meters reach their end of life, utilities are replacing these systems with two-way, fixed 
network AMI systems because of the enhanced data-driven benefits and capabilities AMI enables for both utilities and their 
customers. 

The widespread adoption of water AMI has been slower than electric AMI as the technology has taken longer to mature, 
and the value proposition for deploying this technology has been harder to justify. However, as water AMI technology and 
use cases have advanced, water AMI deployments are becoming more common each year, especially where water AMI 
endpoints can be deployed alongside electric AMI to share the same network infrastructure and back-office systems. 

The IoT analyst firm Berg Insight estimates that the number of water utility AMI endpoints installed in North America 
amounted to approximately 32 million units in 2019 and will grow to surpass 70 million units by 20263. Examples of large-
scale water AMI projects in the United States include the Philadelphia Water Department, which is installing water AMI 

 

 

1 U.S. Energy Information Administration, “How many smart meters are installed in the United States, and who has them?”, November 2021. 
2 A. Wadhera, J. Ayoub, M. Roy, “Smart Grid in Canada 2018”, Natural Resources Canada, April 2019; and S-R. McLean, A. Wadhera, S. Wong, M. Roy, 
“Smart Grid in Canada 2020-21”, Natural Resources Canada, April 2022 
3 Smart Water Magazine, “The number of water AMI endpoints in Europe and North America to surpass 100 million units in 2025”, December 2020. 

RPU provides electric and water service to 38.85 square miles of service territory. The metered service areas mostly overlap
and are within the City of Rochester. Both electric and water-metered services are provided in limited amounts outside the
city limits. RPU’s meter population is organized into 63 routes and 20 billing cycles, and all meters are read once per month.
Meter reading is performed according to a formal schedule, with an average of 2,500 electric and 1,500 water meters being
read  every  business  day  per  month.  With  few  exceptions,  electric  and  water  meters  are  read  simultaneously  by  meter
readers from the Electric Meter shop using a mobile collector.

RPU extensively uses the Itron platform for the collection process, and very few meters are read manually. Typically, the
valid, approved readings are billed the same day in a nightly batch job. RPU creates the service order in the Cayenta billing
system for all service-related work orders. The service order is completed with their mobile electronic application Cayenta
Mobile Work Management (MWM). RPU staff for electric meter reading and field services includes a Lead Meter and Service
Technician, two Meter and Service Technicians for installation and maintenance, and two Customer Relations Field Reps
that  perform  meter  reading  and  collections. Several  Water  Distribution  Workers  accomplish  the  installation  and
maintenance of water meters on an as-needed basis rather than a dedicated workforce.

1  .  2   O  v  e  r  v  i  e  w   o  f   S  t  a  t  e   o  f   t  h  e   I  n  d  u  s  t  r  y   f  o  r   M  e  t  e  r  i  n  g   T  e  c  h  n  o  l  o  g  y

42



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   6 

meters to better serve the 1.58 million people in its service territory4; Fort Worth, which is in the process of replacing 270,000 
residential and commercial meters with smart water meters5; and Louisville Water, which announced in February 2023 that 
it had surpassed 150,000 AMI water meter installations, which amounts to half of the roughly 300,000 individual metered 
accounts in its service area (including residential, commercial, irrigation, fire services, metro, and wholesale customers)6.  

Smaller water utilities are beginning to deploy AMI as replacements for their older water metering systems as well. For 
example, Austin Utilities (in Austin, Minnesota) is in the second year of its six-year AMI installation project which involves 
deploying all new AMI meters for electric, water, and gas services in its territory, which serves 12,000 customers in a 
community of 23,000 people7. 

The prevalence of AMI and the data it provides has in turn increased customer expectations and awareness of water and 
energy usage. In its article, “AMI 2.0: A Catalyst for Expanding Consumer Relationships and Benefits”, the National 
Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners discusses the maturing consumer and how 52 percent of its consumers 
are interested in home energy management technology, and close to 62% percent are interested in receiving customized 
reports with energy-saving tips8. Consumers are a key driver of the increasing implementation of AMI, which can help 
manage distributed energy resources (DER) and distributed/grid intelligence to deliver the “right information at the right 
place at the right time so utilities can meet the demands of new use cases and create value for the customer.”9 

Similarly, customer benefits are beginning to drive water AMI deployments as well. AMI technology provides more accurate 
and more frequent reads to help eliminate estimated or inaccurate bills, and the detailed usage data provided by AMI meters 
can highlight irregularities in water usage to help identify water leaks. Customers can also be given access to a web portal 
to view information about their water consumption, compare their current usage to previous periods or similar accounts, and 
by setting up text or email alerts, customers will have more awareness to help them achieve conservation or savings goals. 

Current AMI technology includes more advanced metering hardware as well as more advanced software in suppliers’ head 
end systems, modules, and applications. Some of AMI’s key capabilities include wider interoperability using a standards-
based solution, greater options for remote meter disconnect/reconnect, distributed/grid intelligence, cloud and data 
analytics, advanced outage detection, integrated distribution automation network support, smart city applications/support, 
remote power quality monitoring, and mass personalization.  

Some of the operational benefits offered to utilities through today’s AMI include the following: 

 Ability to leverage data for improved outage/restoration notifications 

 Support of customer energy disaggregation functionality  

 Improved data for customer web presentment and programs 

 Leak detection 

 Ability to leverage the meter fleet as advanced end of line sensors for distribution monitoring and analytics 

 Improved operational performance  

 Improved reliability  

 

 

4 Philadelphia Water Department, Advanced Metering Infrastructure project page, available online: water.phila.gov/projects/ami/ 
5 Texas Water Newsroom, “Advanced Metering Infrastructure allows water data to flow”, May 28, 2020 
6 Louisville Water, “Advanced metering installations reach halfway point”, February 2023, available online: https://louisvillewater.com/news/advanced-
metering-installations-reach-halfway-point/ 
7 Austin Utilities, AMI Frequently Asked Questions, available online: https://www.austinutilities.com/pages/AMIFAQ/#6 
8 The National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, “AMI 2.0: A Catalyst for Expanding Consumer Relationships and Benefits”, 2021. 
9 PowerGrid International, “The Possibilities of Distributed Intelligence are Endless”, 2020. 

43



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   7 

Some of the more advanced AMI use cases and components include: 

 Distributed/grid intelligence and meter apps 

 Home automation  

 Distribution automation  

 Smart cities and extended use applications (e.g., connected streetlights, traffic monitoring, etc.) 

Whether utilities are considering a full refresh of their AMI or adding new capabilities to their existing networks, the current 
AMI market provides utilities with many options to support customers’ demands for a more fulsome digital experience and 
to facilitate organizational changes that can capitalize on the exponential increase in quality data for data-driven decision 
making. 

1 . 3  O v e r v i e w  o f  R P U ’ s  A M I  P r o j e c t  

1.3.1 Intended Project Outcomes 

The intended project outcome is for RPU to enable advanced smart meters and implement the AMI infrastructure for RPU’s 
electric and water departments.  This will enable RPU, its staff, and its customers to realize the benefits of the latest smart 
metering infrastructure technology.      

By investing in, and laying the groundwork for, this infrastructure technology now, RPU is setting itself up to be able to take 
advantage of the continuously growing benefits of as the AMI industry continues to evolve in the future. 

1.3.2 AMI Implementation Scenarios for Electric and Water 

In 2021, prior to the full market assessment and RFP processes for AMI that were undertaken by RPU, the consulting 
company E Source was engaged to create an initial AMI Assessment and Business Case Report. This report and business 
case helped guide RPU’s initial decision making and analysis around its approach and options for AMI. 

The E Source report presented five distinct scenarios for RPU’s metering, which are described below.      

1.  Scenario 0 – Status Quo Metering System: a status quo approach that maintains electric and water metering activities 
and data management processes. This scenario does not provide the additional benefits associated with 
AMI, such as providing detailed data to customers and the utilities. 

2.  Scenario 1 – Unified Network: deployment of a single network to accommodate both electric and water services, with 
all electric meters exchanged for new meters. 

3.  Scenario 2a – Independent Electric and Water Networks: deployment of wholly independent communication networks 
for electric and water services, with the electric network leveraging RPU’s current investment in Itron Bridge 
electric meters. 

4.  Scenario 2b – Electric-Only Network: deployment of an electric-only network, the electric network leveraging RPU’s 
current investment in Itron Bridge electric meters. 

5.  Scenario 3 – Hybrid Migratory Network: deployment of a network solely for Itron Bridge meters, plus a unified network 
for all water and any non-Bridge electric meters; over time, Itron Bridge meters will be replaced, and new 
meters will be installed that are compatible with the unified network.  

Shown below are E Source’s initial calculations for the total capital expense and operational expense over a twenty-year 
system lifespan for each of the scenarios (based on program assumptions and aligned to the warranties standard within the 
AMI industry). Note that these costs were estimated using internal inputs from RPU and best-guess market rates at the time 
but did not include any quoted costs from vendors. 

44



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   8 

 

 

Category 

Scenario 0 
Status Quo 
Electric and 

Water Systems 

Scenario 1 
Unified Network 

Scenario 2a 
Independent 
Electric and 

Water Networks 

Scenario 2b 
Electric-Only 

Network 

Scenario 3 
Hybrid 

Migratory 
Network 

Total Capital Expense 
(Present Value) 

$12,891,000 $22,180,000 $20,714,000 $8,770,000 $22,991,000 

Total Operations Expense 
(Present Value) 

$3,623,000 $12,155,000 $13,175,000 $10,242,000 $10,740,000 

 

The Unified Network (Scenario 1) presented the best option for RPU with a payback period estimated at 13 years; E Source 
outlined the pros and cons for this option in its report, which are shown below. 

Scenario Pros Cons 

Scenario 1: Unified Network 

 Provides the highest ROI 

 Provides equality of service to all 
customers 

 Will be the simplest architecture for 
implementation, mitigating risk of 
cost and schedule overruns 

 Requires early retirement of Itron 
Bridge meters 

 May lock the utility into using Itron if 
a buyback rebate is pursued for 
Bridge meters 

 

Based on this analysis, RPU proceeded with further market analysis and begun the process to develop RFPs for the AMI 
and MDM systems required for a unified network. After RPU issued RFPs and collected cost proposals from vendors, RPU 
updated the financial projections for Scenario 1 to reflect the vendors’ quoted costs and more recent information and 
analysis from the market. These updated costs are shown in Section 2.1.1 Post RFP Cost Review. 

1.3.3 Summary of Complete AMI Solution 

If approved for implementation, RPU’s AMI project will require the procurement and implementation of a complete AMI 
solution, which consists of three main components: hardware, software, and professional services.  

The necessary hardware includes: 

 The AMI electric meters and water endpoints 

 The AMI communication network infrastructure 

 Other sensors or devices that will be installed in the field 

The primary software being procured as part of the project are: 

 The AMI head end system (HES) 

 The meter data management system (MDM) 

The complete solution also includes services to implement and maintain the hardware and software, including: 

 HES implementation services and training 

 HES hosting and maintenance services (for a cloud/software as a service (SaaS) HES) 

45



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   9 

 AMI meter installations (both electric and water) and network equipment installation services (if not being performed 
by internal resources) 

 MDM implementation services and training 

 MDM hosting and maintenance services 

 Systems integration services 

 Project management services for meter deployment 

1.3.3.1 Integration 

The new AMI and MDM systems can be integrated into RPU’s technical environment and interface with the following utility 
systems: 

 Customer information system (CIS) 

 Geographic information system (GIS) 

 Advanced distribution management system (ADMS) 

 Demand response management system (DRMS)  

 Workforce management systems (WFM/WMS) 

 Field Collection Systems (FCS) 

 Customer Portal (WEB) 

1.3.4 MDM System 

The meter data management system (MDM) centralizes the storage, processing and analysis of meter data and operational 
data (e.g., tamper alerts) and makes it available to downstream systems. The MDM is used to validate, aggregate, and 
store the vast quantities of data from the smart meters and devices.  The Validation, Editing, and Estimating (VEE) functions 
it provides on meter reading data are critical to the streamlined meter-to-bill process.  In addition, the MDM plays a central 
role in many of the troubleshooting use cases, analytical use cases and overall operations of the network.  The graphic 
below shows the flow of data and communication paths in typical AMI and MDM implementation. 

 

1.3.5 Meter Field Installations 

Given RPU’s current staffing levels in the Electric and Water departments, it would need more personnel to handle a project 
of this size and complete a full exchange of the meter hardware in the field. To complete the project in a 24-month time 
frame, RPU will need a contractor to assist in exchanging its 55,575 Electric meters and 42,000 Water ERT modules. 

1.3.5.1 Electric Installations 

The electric meter changes will consist of a field site visit where an attempt to contact the customer via knocking on the 
door will be followed by exchanging the electric meter, resulting in a brief power outage in some cases. The entire field 
exchange process takes 10 minutes on average. 

46



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   10 

1.3.5.2 Water Installations 

The eater ERT exchanges will require an appointment with the customer, so the customer can be present to grant access 
to the customer's home for the installer to exchange the water ERT transmitting device. The entire field exchange process 
takes 10 minutes on average. 

1.3.5.3 Network Device Installations 

Network devices will be installed in the field to facilitate two-way communication with the AMI meters. Devices will be located 
strategically in the service territory to provide maximum coverage and network strength, and will be installed on existing 
infrastructure (e.g., mounted on poles). 

1.3.6 AMI Phases and Use Cases 

AMI will serve as a foundational technology to enable future use cases and functionality that will benefit both the utility and 
the customers. Not all functionality of AMI and MDM systems can or should be deployed at the same time. Some of the 
functionality is required to be in place at software Go Live before the mass deployment of meters.  For example, the new 
remote meter reading and billing processes need to be in place when meters start being installed in the field.  Other software 
functionality is dependent on most meters being deployed in the field and thus will be planned to be enabled in the future.  
Examples of this are Line Loss Analysis on the electric distribution grid and Water Loss Analysis in water distribution area. 

Once AMI and MDM systems are implemented, the available features and functionality can be deployed or activated in 
three phases, shown below: 

 Phase 1: Meter to Cash 

 Phase 2: Advanced Features 

 Phase 3: Future Use Cases 

The objectives over-arching all phases of AMI implementation are focused on electrification and future-proofing the utility’s 
metering and distribution infrastructure. Along with improving utility safety, resilience, and operational efficiency, the AMI 
implementation will allow the utility to offer both hard and soft benefits for its customer base, including proactive engagement 
with customers and providing detailed data to empower customers with more control and insight into their water and energy 
consumption. 

The three phases of AMI functionality deployment and examples of the use cases each will enable are described below. 

1.3.6.1 Phase 1: Meter to Cash 

This is the initial phase that is targeted for “Go Live” of the new AMI and MDM systems.  It includes the deployment of the 
physical infrastructure for the RF communications network, the implementation of the AMI software needed to collect meter 
data and manage the communication network, the implementation of the MDM software needed to process the meter data 
for billing, and the accompanying system integrations to the Cayenta CIS. The primary use cases in this phase are: 

Remote Meter Reading – collect hourly meter reading data via radio frequency (RF) communication technology.  The large 
amounts of data are validated and stored for billing, customer presentment, and analysis. 

Billing – the billing process is updated to allow the Cayenta billing system to use the meter read data collected and stored 
in the MDM. 

1.3.6.2 Phase 2: Advanced Features 

Once the mass meter deployment has started additional software functionality can be implemented. The additional use 
cases that can be included in Phase 2 are: 

47



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   11 

Customer Portal – A customer-facing portal will assist customers in understanding and managing their usage and payment 
options. Customers can choose to receive critical notifications about possible water leaks, high usage, and outage events. 
Time-of-use (TOU) customers can also use the portal to help inform economic decisions for EV charging and whole house 
electric usage.  

Energy Star Portfolio Manager – Customer Care project for C&I customers that provides more detailed visibility to 
consumption information. 

Transformer Analysis – Continually analyses loads on distribution transformers and identifies those at risk of failure, 
resulting in improved system reliability and better asset utilization. 

Direct load control (DLC) – The utility can regulate a customer's energy directly, for example, by cycling air conditioners 
or water heaters on and off during peak demand periods. 

Outage Management – the OMS Responder solution is updated to leverage the real time outage and restoration 
notifications from the smart meters, which provides a more accurate and up-to-date tool for outage management.  

1.3.6.3 Phase 3: Future Use Cases 

In Phase 3 the mass meter deployment has been completed, and as such there are additional use cases can be enabled, 
such as: 

Water loss analysis – Works by calculating losses continually at the most granular level possible with the existing 
instrumentation. Increases in loss are quantified immediately and gives a better indication of where the loss is occurring. 

Water meter health – A comprehensive solution to reduce non-revenue water and improve financial performance by using 
advanced analytics to target meter testing and replacement. 

Electric vehicle analytics – Uses residential load profiles to identify locations with EVs, analyze charging patterns and 
quantify the impacts on costs and reliability now and into the future. 

Distribution system analytics – Uses enhanced distribution system data to help optimize the distribution system and 
perform voltage analysis, e.g., analyzing voltage deviation for switching. 

  

48



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   12 

1.3.7 High-Level Project Schedule 

At a high level the overall AMI project can be broken into three stages: procurement, implementation, and operations, which 
are described below.  

Procurement 

The initial procurement stage involves answering the questions of, “Should RPU invest in this technology?” and “How would 
this project fit into RPU’s current strategic and operational plans?”  To answer these questions, work has been done to 
develop a fulsome business case to describe benefits and costs, analyse various implementation scenarios, and develop a 
justification for the investment.  RFPs were created to evaluate vendors for the large cost items for the project, identify the 
ideal vendors for RPU, and validate and refine costs. Once the overall AMI project is formally approved, contract 
negotiations will be completed with the vendors. 

Implementation 

The second stage of the project is implementation, which involves deploying the acquired software and related interfaces 
in RPU’s ecosystem, deploying the communications network infrastructure, and deploying the new metering technology in 
the field. 

Operations 

The third stage (operations) focuses on enabling the RPU organization and staff through standing up a Smart Meter 
Operations Center (SMOC) or similar entity, training staff, and leading them through business process changes that ensure 
the benefits of the investment are realized through operations. Once the systems and resources are operationalized and 
the first phase meter to cash functions are well established, then the project can work to deploy the advanced features and 
future use cases planned for the later phases of the operations period. 

 

The timeline graphic on the following page shows a preliminary schedule for RPU’s AMI project, including the three project 
stages, and the approximate timing for the three phases of AMI functional releases. 

 

49



   

  

 

 

 

RPU AMI Project Preliminary Schedule 

 

  

 

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Procurement
Board Approval Meetings
Business Case / Costs Benefits
Technology & Solution Analysis
Vendor Eval & Selection
Contracting

Implementation
Project Team Mobilization
Solution Build/Integrate
System Go Live
Mass Meter Deployment

Operations
Business Process Transition
Operations Center

AMI Functional Releases Phase 1 Meter to Cash

Phase 3  Future Use Cases

Phase 2 Advanced Features

50



  

                                                                                                                                                                                                  

     14 

 

2  Background o f  Consul tants  and Pas t  Repor ts  

2 . 1  I n i t i a l  B u s i n e s s  C a s e  

As discussed in Section 1.3 Overview of RPU’s AMI Project, E Source provided an AMI Assessment and Business Case 
Report to RPU in 2021, which recommended a Unified Network scenario for deployment.   

The largest contributors to the benefits in this model include the following10: 

 Meter Reading Use Cases (billing, Move-In/Move-Out etc.) 

 Billing Exception Handling 

 Theft Identification 

 Improved Meter Accuracy 

 Conservation Program Savings 

 Distribution System Loss Reduction 

Based on Util-Assist’s third-party review of the business case, Util-Assist concurs with the findings of contributing benefits 
of the investment in AMI presented in the E Source report and agrees with the high-level assumptions used in the analysis.  
Util-Assist typically sees a benefit in the range of $400 per meter (total life cycle) at utilities of similar size to RPU, with 
savings primarily in billing and meter reading, and secondarily in revenue protection, system loss, asset management, and 
customer education and engagement.  

2.1.1 Post RFP Cost Review  

Based on the prices quoted in the RFP process and Util-Assist’s current market estimates, the total capital and total 
operating costs for RPU’s project over a 15-year time frame are $28.8M and $8.5M, respectively. The capital outlay is mostly 
during the deployment period as 94% of the capital costs will be spent during the deployment with an average operating 
cost of $900,000/year there after. The water costs are assumed to be the incremental costs of the water infrastructure on 
an already existing electric network.  

The capital and operating cost breakdowns are shown in the following tables (all figures are NPV). The shared costs 
between Electric and Water are allocated according to relative number of meters.  A split of 58.5% Electric / 41.5% Water 
was used for shared costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 See Table 9: Program Benefits Assumptions in the E Source Advanced Metering Infrastructure Assessment and Business 
Case Report for Rochester Public Utilities for full list of benefits. 

51



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   15 

 

 

Project Capital Costs (15 Year NPV) Total Costs Electric Water 
Percentage of 

Total 

Meter and ERTs   $ 14,183,056   $   8,389,719   $   5,793,338  48% 

Installation Costs  $   4,757,675   $   1,243,968   $   3,513,707  16% 

Network Equipment Costs   $      381,579   $      224,521   $      157,058  2% 

Head End System and Meter Data 
Management Costs 

 $      517,108   $      304,267   $      212,842  2% 

Vendor Professional Services Cost   $   1,832,047   $   1,077,976   $      754,070  6% 

AMI Project Team Cost  $   2,096,025   $   1,233,301   $      862,724  7% 

Utility Operations Team  $      264,199   $      155,455   $      108,744  1% 

Systems Integration  $   4,636,038   $   2,727,845   $   1,908,193  14% 

Legal and Contract Costs  $      188,679   $      111,019   $        77,660  1% 

Total Capital Costs  $28,856,406   $15,468,070   $13,388,336  100% 

 

Project Operating Costs (15 Year NPV) Total Costs Electric Water 
Percentage of 

Total 

Network Equipment Operating Costs   $      241,205   $      141,949   $        99,256  3% 

Head End System Operating Costs   $   5,174,397   $   3,045,132   $   2,129,264  61% 

AMI Project Team Operating Costs   $   2,999,078   $   1,764,957   $   1,234,120  35% 

AMI Security Audits Operating Costs   $      106,802   $        62,853   $        43,949  1% 

 Total Operating Costs  $   8,521,481   $   5,014,892   $   3,506,590  100% 

 

2.1.2 Difference Between Business Case Costs and Post-RFP Costs 

The costs estimates are now updated after the procurement phase, and RPU has more certainty on the costs from specific 
AMI, MDM, and Meter Install vendors.  This is due to: 

 Hardware equipment (meters and communications equipment) is more expensive than 2 years ago when the 
Business Case analysis was completed. 

 The business case captures 20 years of costs, while the post-RFP Costs are over a 15-year time period. 

 The HES and MDM licensing costs are higher. 

 The operating costs are now estimated to be $900k annually (as opposed to $600k annually in original business 
case) 

 

52



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   16 

2 . 2  U p c o m i n g  C o n s u l t a n t  S e r v i c e s  

This section outlines upcoming work that RPU will require from consultants to complete the AMI implementation, including 
contract negotiations support and systems implementation support. Contracts for this work have not been signed as of the 
time of writing, but the projected costs for these services have been included in the overall project cost calculations. 

2.2.1 Negotiations and Contract Development Support 

Once RPU has approval for its selection of AMI, MDM, and installation services vendors, it will need to develop and negotiate 
scope of work (SOW) and contract documents with each of these companies. This will require both legal support and 
consultant support to ensure that the utility and vendors develop comprehensive documentation that details the work 
requirements and protects the utility from risk as much as possible. RPU is in discussions with Util-Assist to provide 
negotiation and contract development support. Util-Assist has extensive experience providing this service and because it 
facilitated RPU’s AMI, MDM, and installation services procurements, it will be familiar with the project requirements and 
desired scopes of work. The negotiation and development of the SOW and contract documents is expected to take a 
minimum of nine months, and support from the consultant will include the following services: 

 Development of a workplan for the negotiation and development of the AMI, MDM, and installation contract 
documents 

 Facilitation of planning and education sessions with the utility 

 Provision of guidance, recommendations, and review for all agreements to ensure key contractual items and 
specifications are included. 

 Provision of guidance, recommendations, and review for all SOW documents and the vendors’ scopes to ensure 
they match the proposals and cover all necessary work. 

2.2.2 Project Management for Solutions Implementation 

Deploying AMI at RPU will involve both the installation of physical hardware in the field (e.g., meters and network devices) 
as well as the implementation and integration of software systems into RPU’s environment. RPU will require consultant 
support for these two tasks, i.e., support for technical and business process changes required to integrate the AMI and 
MDM solutions into RPU’s operational and technical environment, and project management support for the mass meter 
deployment. RPU is in discussions with Util-Assist for the provision of these services, and their delivery timeframe would 
start when the AMI planning and implementation begins (expected in early 2024) and conclude when the meter deployment 
is complete (estimated Q4 2027). At a high level, the systems integration and deployment support will include the following 
activities: 

 Project management of systems integration activities, including management of scope, schedules, resources, and 
documentation 

 Development of business requirements, including facilitation of business process workshops and education and 
discovery sessions 

 Solution architecture and integration design 

 Testing support for the full solution, including performance of functional testing and support of vendor-led testing. 

 Development and execution of an AMI knowledge transfer plan 

 Support for development of meter deployment processes and practices 

 Support of implementation planning and deployment activities throughout mass meter deployment 

53



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   17 

3  AMI  Project  Procurement  Act iv i t ies 
This section summarizes the procurement activities undertaken by RPU to evaluate and select vendors for the three main 
components of its AMI project: the AMI itself, including meters, network devices, and head end system; a meter data 
management system; and field installation services for the electric and water meters and endpoints. Util-Assist helped 
facilitate the procurement processes, and provided support for procurement project management, RFP development and 
release, communication with proponent vendors, and evaluation and selection of the recommended proponents. 

3 . 1  R e q u i r e m e n t s  a n d  S p e c i f i c a t i o n s  D e v e l o p m e n t  

The procurement process began with a project kick off and AMI education session, hosted by Util-Assist. These were 
followed by extensive RFP requirement discovery and development workshops, in which the RPU team developed 
specifications for the required solutions. Once the RFP requirements were completed, Util-Assist and RPU conducted 
weightings workshops for all three RFPs to decide the importance and score values for each component and section of the 
RFPs. The table below shows the timeline for RFP development and release. 

RFP Stages Date 

Kick off meeting and AMI education session March 2022 

AMI RFP requirements workshops (nine in total) March – April 2022 

MDM RFP requirements workshops (four in total) April 2022 

Installation RFP requirements workshops (two in total) April 2022 

RFP evaluation weightings sessions August 2022 

AMI, MDM, and Install RFPs release August 12, 2022 

Installation Services RFP proposal due date September 30, 2022 

AMI RFP proposal due date October 7, 2022 

MDM RFP proposal due date October 14, 2022 

3 . 2  A M I ,  M D M ,  a n d  I n s t a l l a t i o n  R F P s  a n d  P r o p o n e n t s  

RPU’s AMI, MDM, and Installation RFPs were released together as a package that was sent to a list of pre-selected 
recipients. The responding companies (the “proponent vendors” or “proponents”) were not obliged to respond to all three 
RFPs and instead were allowed to respond to any or all of them as they saw fit. The list of RFP recipients was created by 
RPU and Util-Assist and was composed of both market-leading companies in AMI, MDM, and meter installation services, 
as well as other mid-sized companies identified as a good potential fits for RPU because of their locality or target market 
(e.g., small to mid-size utilities with multiple commodities).  

The table below shows the RFP recipients, their core areas, and which RFPs the recipients responded to. 

 

 

 

 

54



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   18 

RFP Recipients Core Area Bid AMI Bid MDM Bid Installation 

Itron AMI+MDM Yes Yes  

Honeywell AMI+Install Yes  Yes 

Sensus AMI Yes   

Aclara AMI Yes   

Tantalus AMI Yes   

Badger Meter Meters Yes   

NextEra Energy AMI Yes   

Harris Utilities MDM  Yes  

Siemens MDM  Yes  

Olameter Install   Yes 

Wesco - Anixter Install   Yes 

Allegiant Utility Services Install   Yes 

Trilliant AMI    

Eaton AMI    

Landis+Gyr AMI+MDM    

Oracle MDM    

Grid One Install    

In response to its requests for proposals, RPU received: 

 5 complete AMI proposals (plus 2 incomplete proposals) 

 3 complete MDM proposals 

 3 complete Installation proposals (plus 1 incomplete proposal) 

3 . 3  E v a l u a t i o n  o f  P r o p o s a l s  

RPU’s proposal evaluation team consisted of eight members, representing all major business units and areas of expertise. 
Util-Assist subject matter experts helped guide the evaluation process and provided input as needed to address the 
evaluation team’s questions. Proposal responses to the RFP were evaluated using the following process: 

1. Independent evaluations – each member of the evaluation team performed an independent evaluation of each 
proponent’s proposal. 

2. Consensus scoring – the evaluation team met to discuss scores and come to a consensus on the scores each 
proponent should receive. 

3. Shortlisting – the evaluation team decided which proponents and solutions warranted further consideration, and 
which would be cut from further evaluation. 

4. Clarifications and demonstrations – the evaluation team asked the proponents clarifying questions about their 
solutions and met with the shortlisted vendors to discuss specific items and see some functions demonstrated live. 

55



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   19 

5. Requests for revised offers – RPU requested final clarifying information as well as revised, more competitive 
pricing offers from proponents. 

6. Selection – the evaluation team conducted reference calls for the leading proponents, then met and agreed on the 
preferred proponent for each RFP. 

Proponents’ RFP submissions were evaluated according to three main areas: 

1. Proponent experience, approach, and overall alignment with utility strategy and project 
2. Ability to meet the RFP’s technical requirements 
3. Solution price 

The timeline for the evaluation of the RFPs is shown below: 

Event Date 

Proposal evaluations by evaluation team October – November 2022 

Evaluation team consensus scoring sessions December 2022 

Proponent shortlisting decisions January 2023 

Shortlisted proponent demonstrations March 2023 

Clarification questions and follow-up demonstrations March 2023 

Requests for revised pricing offers April 2023 

Selection of preferred proponents April 2023 

3.3.1 AMI RFP Evaluation 

RPU received proposals for the provision of AMI from the following seven proponents: 

1. Aclara 
2. Badger Meter 
3. Honeywell 
4. Itron 
5. NextEra 
6. Sensus/Core & Main 
7. Tantalus 

RPU reviewed and evaluated the proposals and their submitting proponent companies based on technical scores, pricing, 
preliminary alignment with warranty and contract terms, and overall fit for utility needs. The evaluation team took the 
following steps to evaluate proponents and select the preferred AMI proponent: 

1. RPU evaluation resources completed independent evaluations of all complete proposals. 

2. RPU issued clarification questions to collect more information from proponents on their solutions. 

3. RPU identified the top proponents and hosted oral demonstration and discussion meetings to learn more about the 
proponents and their AMI solutions. 

4. RPU held follow-up meetings with the proponents to collect further clarifying information and see demonstrations of 
additional features. 

5. RPU requested final clarifying information and revised pricing offers from proponents. 

6. The evaluation team met to discuss and agree on its recommendation for AMI vendor. 

56



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   20 

3.3.1.1 AMI Vendor Recommendation 

The evaluation team recommends that RPU negotiate with Itron to be its AMI provider. The primary reasons are listed 
below. 

 Itron offers a robust, proven, and Wi-SUN compliant solution, with leading hardware and meter specifications. Itron 
also has a mature distributed intelligence and meter app offering, creating an opportunity to implement these 
capabilities to achieve enhanced operational and customer benefits in the future. Strong meter hardware is essential 
for providing a “future-proof” solution that is going to be in the field for 15 years or more. The system will be flexible 
and robust enough to accommodate increases in computing or bandwidth demands as future updates and 
capabilities are implemented. 

 Itron provides competitive pricing with a high degree of cost certainty, with the most detailed pricing and 
assumptions included in its proposal.  

 Itron offers the strongest meter and network warranty coverage in its proposal. 

 Itron provided comprehensive draft contract language in its RFP response, which can reduce the time, effort, and 
costs involved in drafting, revising, and finalizing these documents during negotiations. 

 Itron is offering the lowest price for water assets. 

 Itron has indicated it is willing to discuss a meter buyback on existing RPU meter stocks, which presents an 
opportunity for cost recovery. 

 Overall, Itron provided detailed, insightful, and comprehensive information in its proposal and clarifying responses, 
which gives the evaluation team confidence that Itron has thoroughly understood the utility’s requirements, and that 
the risk of change orders and price or scope increases would be minimal. 

3.3.2 MDM RFP Evaluation 

RPU received proposals for the provision of an MDM system from the following three proponents: 

1. Harris 
2. Itron 
3. Siemens 

RPU reviewed and evaluated the proposals and their submitting proponent companies based on system technical 
capabilities, pricing, preliminary alignment with warranty and contract terms, and overall fit for utility needs. The evaluation 
team took the following steps to evaluate proponents and select the preferred MDM proponent: 

1. RPU evaluation resources completed independent evaluations of the proposals. 

2. RPU issued clarification questions to collect more information from proponents on their MDM solutions. 

3. RPU hosted oral demonstration and discussion meetings to learn more about the proponents and their solutions. 

4. RPU held follow-up meetings with the proponents to collect further clarifying information and see demonstrations of 
additional MDM features. 

5. RPU requested final clarifying information and revised pricing offers from proponents. 

6. The evaluation team conducted reference calls with existing clients of the proponents to gain insight into how the 
proponent companies and their systems operate. 

7. The evaluation team met to discuss and agree on its recommendation for MDM vendor. 

57



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   21 

3.3.2.1 MDM Proponent Recommendation 

The project team recommends that RPU negotiate with Harris to be its MDM provider. The rationale for this recommendation 
is as follows: 

 The Harris organization and its SmartWorks product are “right-sized” for a utility of RPU’s size. Harris’s SmartWorks 
platform and MeterSense MDM software were designed from the ground up targeted towards multi-commodity 
utilities in the small to mid-sized market. As a client, the evaluation team is confident RPU would receive a high 
priority for support and issue resolution during both implementation and sustainment of the solution. 

 The Harris system is substantially less expensive than the other solutions over the system’s lifetime and does not 
have any significant functionality deficiencies. 

 In demonstrations the evaluation team found the Harris system to have the best user interface and be the most 
intuitive and user-friendly to operate. 

 The Harris product has numerous desirable features available as part of the core system as opposed to having 
these provided by additional software modules, meaning there will be less expense and complexity in implementing 
these functions. 

 Implementing a Harris system can offer advantages and efficiencies for integrating with RPU’s Cayenta CIS, a 
system for which the integration process has become standardized and efficient. The Harris team has substantial 
experience implementing their solution with the Cayenta CIS and stated that they could review the Cayenta contract 
and system to ensure there would not be any issues or unexpected costs in integrating the CIS to the Harris MDM. 

 Harris provided suggestions for how RPU can avoid some of the challenges that it faced when it implemented the 
Cayenta CIS. While Harris SmartWorks and Cayenta are owned by the same parent company, the two companies 
and products are separate entities that do not share any resources or management. The Harris SmartWorks team 
stated it could coordinate with Cayenta to ensure a smoother implementation for this project and help identify any 
potential challenges up front during discovery and planning, for example by reviewing the Cayenta system and 
scope to mitigate the risk of any change orders or scope increases in integrating the CIS to the new MDM. 

3.3.3 Installation Services RFP Evaluation 

RPU received proposals for field installation services from the following four proponents: 

1. Allegiant Utility Services 
2. Wesco/Anixter 
3. Honeywell 
4. Olameter 

RPU reviewed and evaluated the proposals and their submitting proponent companies based on their ability to meet the 
RFP’s technical requirements (i.e., ability to complete the field work and provide the necessary support and systems for the 
project), as well as pricing, preliminary alignment with warranty and contract terms, and overall fit for utility needs. The 
evaluation team took the following steps to evaluate proponents and select the preferred field installation proponent: 

1. RPU evaluation resources completed independent evaluations of the proposals. 

2. RPU issued clarification questions to collect more information from proponents on their installation solutions. 

3. RPU identified the top proponents and hosted oral demonstration and discussion meetings to learn more about the 
proponents, their proposed work management systems, and their work processes. 

4. RPU requested final clarifying information and revised pricing offers from proponents. 

58



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   22 

5. The evaluation team met to discuss and agree on its recommendation for field installation vendor. 

3.3.3.1 Field Installation Proponent Recommendation  

The project team recommends that RPU negotiate with Anixter for field installation services. The rationale for this 
recommendation is as follows: 

 Anixter scored highly on the RFP’s technical requirements and offered capable services solutions to meet RPU’s 
project needs for electric and water endpoint exchanges, provision of a work management system (WMS) to 
manage the mass deployment, customer call center and appointment booking services for the mass deployment, 
and optional network installation and warehousing services if required.  

 Anixter proposed the lowest viable pricing, with the lowest electric meter installation costs.  

 Anixter has substantial, recent, and relevant experience completing installation projects similar to RPU’s in size and 
scope, including project in Minnesota and similar service territories in the Unites States. 

 Anixter’s proposed subcontractor for water installations (Midwest Testing) has substantial experience working on 
projects similar to RPU’s in size and scope and have successfully completed several water installation projects in 
Minnesota. 

  

59



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   23 

4  Resourc ing and S taf f ing 
RPU estimates it will require six full-time equivalent (FTE) resources for the AMI project; two of these would be limited term 
to support the implementation phase, and the other four would remain post-project for ongoing support, operations, and 
maintenance of the systems. 

4 . 1  R e s o u r c e  D e s c r i p t i o n s  

The internal resources required for the AMI project are as follows: 

One IT Analyst and one IT System Administrator: 

Responsibilities for these resources during implementation will be:  

 Learning and understanding the technologies and experiences from vendors and users/fellow utilities 

 System architecture and design 

 Network design and deployment 

 System security 

 System integration, e.g., with Cayenta, SEW, SAP, GIS, FCS. 

 System testing, documentation, and training 

 IT task and resource coordination related to the projects. 

 Change management 

On-going support responsibilities include: 

 Network support and maintenance. 

 Application support and administration 

 System security 

 Learning, training, knowledge sharing 

 Collaboration and innovation 

 Data management 

One AMI/MDM Support Specialist: 

Responsibilities for this resource include:  

 The daily monitoring, management, and analysis of the MDM data to ensure optimal network health, prompt 
resolution of exceptions, and accurate synchronization of data across the MDM, CIS, and the AMI head-
end.  

 Analysis, troubleshooting, and exception handling are the primary responsibilities of the AMI MDM Support 
Specialist. This role works closely with Billing, Customer Care, Device Management, AMI Operations 
specialists, and Meter & Service Technicians to refine processes and resolve issues. 

One AMI Operations Specialist: 

Responsibilities for this resource include: 

 Assisting with and ensuring proper daily operation of the metering solutions technology systems and data, 
including AMI and AMR systems. This includes network monitoring, scheduling, system maintenance, analysis, 
and maintaining the accuracy of various AMR and AMI reports.  

 Testing and implementing enhancements to metering systems and any interfacing systems or applications. 

60



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   24 

 Serves as a liaison between Customer Care, Finance Services, and Core Services.  

 Facilitates operational performance optimization by enhancing the alignment between business processes and 
technology. This role works closely with Billing, Customer Care, Device Management, AMI MDM Support 
specialists, and Meter & Service Technicians to refine processes and resolve issues. 

Two Limited-Term IT Resources: 

 These two limited-term resources will support IT and implementation tasks during the installation, configuration, 
integration and testing of the AMI and MDM systems. 

 

5  Summary  o f  Pro jec t  Costs  
The table below shows a summary of the AMI project costs. Figures include costs that have been quoted by the 
recommended AMI, MDM and Installation proponents in their RFP responses, costs quoted from other vendors or 
consultants that will be involved in the AMI implementation, and estimated RPU internal costs like project team resourcing 
or legal expenses. 

 

Total Costs (15 Year NPV) Total Costs Electric Water 

Total Capital   $      28,856,000  $      15,468,000   $        13,388,000  

Total Operating and Maintenance   $        8,522,000   $        5,015,000   $          3,507,000  

 

5 . 1  I m p a c t  t o  C u s t o m e r  B i l l s  

Based on the financial and budgeting analysis, the Phase 1 impact to the customer is estimated to be $2.62 per meter per 
month for electric and $3.27 per meter per month for water. 

61



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Board Policy Review

PRESENTER:
Mark Kotschevar

REQUEST FOR ACTION

RPU Index of Board Policies

6.A

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Review the Index of Board Policies to summarize progress on policy updates and determine future policy
review items.

Report Narrative:
RPU Board policies are updated throughout the year as needed.

Prepared By:
Christina Bailey

Attachments:
Index of Board Policies-revised.xlsx

62

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1969587/Index_of_Board_Policies-revised.pdf


ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES
INDEX OF BOARD POLICIES

REVISION DATE FOCUS AREA / STAFF LIAISON
BOARD
1. Mission Statement 4/25/2023 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
2. Responsibilities and Functions 3/27/2012 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
3. Relationship with the Common Council 2/28/2012 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
4. Board Organization 3/27/2018 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
5. Board Procedures 9/27/2022 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
6. Delegation of Authority/Relationship with Management 7/24/2018 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
7. Member Attendance at Conferences and Meetings 12/18/2018 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
8. Board Member Expenses 12/18/2018 Policy / Mark Kotschevar
9. Conflict of Interest DELETED N/A
10. Alcohol and Illegal Drugs DELETED N/A
11. Worker Safety 3/27/2012 Policy / Mark Kotschevar

CUSTOMER
12. Customer Relations 4/30/2019 Ops & Admin / Krista Boston
13. Public Information and Outreach 4/30/2019 Communications / Steven Nyhus
14. Application for Service 7/1/2016 Ops & Admin / Scott Nickels
15. Electric Utility Line Extension Policy 3/28/2017 Finance / Peter Hogan
16. Billing, Credit and Collections Policy 4/26/2022 Finance / Peter Hogan
17. Electric Service Availability 10/29/2019 Ops & Admin / Scott Nickels
18. Water and Electric Metering 6/26/2018 Ops & Admin / Scott Nickels
19. Adjustment of Utility Services Billed 6/29/2021 Finance / Peter Hogan
20. Rates 7/25/2017 Finance  / Peter Hogan
21. Involuntary Disconnection 9/28/2021 Communications / Steven Nyhus

ADMINISTRATIVE
22. Acquisition and Disposal of Interest in Real Property 12/19/2017 Ops & Admin / Scott Nickels
23. Electric Utility Cash Reserve Policy 1/28/2020 Finance  / Peter Hogan
24. Water Utility Cash Reserve Policy 1/28/2020 Finance / Peter Hogan
25. Charitable Contributions 6/25/2019 Communications / Steven Nyhus
26. Utility Compliance 10/24/2017 Communications / Steven Nyhus
27. Contribution in Lieu of Taxes 6/29/1999 Finance  / Peter Hogan
28. Joint-Use of Infrastructure and Land Rights 3/30/2021 Ops & Admin / Scott Nickels
29. Customer Data Management Policy 3/22/2022 Communications / Steven Nyhus
30. Life Support 9/24/2019 Communications / Steven Nyhus
31. Electric Utility Undergrounding Policy 9/29/2020 Ops & Admin / Scott Nickels

Red - Currently being worked on
Yellow - Will be scheduled for revision
Marked for deletion

63



MEETING DATE:
May 30, 2023

ORIGINATING DEPT:
Rochester Public Utilities

AGENDA SECTION:
Division Reports & Metrics

PRESENTER:
Mark Kotschevar

REQUEST FOR ACTION

Division Reports & Metrics - May 2023

8.A

 

 

 

Action Requested:
Review the reports from each of RPU's five divisions: Core Services, Compliance and Public Affairs,
Power Resources, Customer Relations and Corporate Services.

Report Narrative:
Each division of RPU reports monthly on its metrics and activities to the Board.

Prepared By:
Christina Bailey

Attachments:
Division Reports May 2023.pdf

64

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1970310/Division_Reports_May_2023.pdf


   

CORE SERVICES 

SAFETY, COMPLIANCE & PUBLIC AFFAIRS 

POWER RESOURCES 

CUSTOMER RELATIONS 

CORPORATE SERVICES 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

 

Division Reports & Metrics                  
May 2023 

 

 

 

65



 

Division Reports & Metrics                  
May 2023 

CORE SERVICES 

Electric Utility: 

1. Electric Outage Calculations for the month and year to date (March 2023 Data) 

a. Reliability = 99.99972%                                  Year-to-date Reliability = 99.99841% 

b. 108 Customers affected by Outages Year-to-date Customers affected by Outages = 1,241 

c. SAIDI = 0.12 min   Year-to-date SAIDI = 0.66 min 

d. CAIDI = 36.53 min                                         Year-to-date CAIDI = 66.19 min 

2. Electric Utility Operations – T&D, Engineering, System Ops, GIS, Tech Services:   

 RPU’s AMI Subject Matter Experts participated in a second round of scripted demonstrations from the short 
listed MDM vendors.   

 The 9th Street duct construction, as part of the Marion Road Project, will restart in April. 

 Reliability statistics were improved due to the lack of severe weather in March.    
 

 

34

26

14

8 8

3

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

O
c
c
u

re
n

c
e
s

Number of Outages
by select cause code

Squirrel Outages

Vegetation Outages

66



Summary of individual electrical outages (greater than 200 customers – March 2023 data) 

# 
Customers 

Date Duration Cause 

None    

 

Summary of aggregated incident types (greater than 200 customers – March 2023 data) 

# 
Customers 

Total # of 
Incidents 

 Cause 

None   

    

Water Utility: 

 

1. Water Outage Calculations for the month and year to date (March 2023 data): 

a. Reliability = 99.99952330%                         Year-to-date Reliability = 99.99915562% 

b. 113 Customers Affected by Outages             Year-to-date Customers Affected by Outages = 323 

c. 147.5 Customer Outage Hours               Year-to-date Customer Outage Hours = 696.5 
d. SAIDI = 0.2                                          Year-to-date SAIDI = 1.0 
e. CAIDI = 78.3                                            Year-to-date CAIDI = 129.4 

 

 Performed 355 Gopher State water utility locates during the month for a total of 667 for the year.   

 Repaired water distribution system failures or maintenance at the following locations during the 
month.  : 

 1219 7th St NW – (Water Main Break) – 3/4 

 1617 3rd Ave NW – (Water Main Break) – 3/17 

 1421 3rd Ave & 15th St SE – (Water Main Break) – 3/21 

 

 

 

 

67



  

  
 

 -

 50,000,000

 100,000,000

 150,000,000

 200,000,000

 250,000,000

 300,000,000

 350,000,000

 400,000,000

 450,000,000

 500,000,000

 550,000,000

 600,000,000

 650,000,000

 700,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

P
u

m
p

a
g

e
 i
n

 G
a
ll

o
n

s

Month

Actual vs. Projected Pumpage:  2023
Core Services - Water Maintenance & Construction

Actual Pumpage Projected Pumpage

 -

 500,000,000

 1,000,000,000

 1,500,000,000

 2,000,000,000

 2,500,000,000

 3,000,000,000

 3,500,000,000

 4,000,000,000

 4,500,000,000

 5,000,000,000

 5,500,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 P

u
m

p
a
g

e

Month

Cumulative Pumpage Comparison:  2023
Core Services - Water Maintenance & Construction

2023 Cumulative 2023 Budgeted 2007 (Peak Year) 2012 (Typical Year) 2019 (Wet Year)

68



  

 
 

GIS/Property Rights 

 Hydro line LIDAR flight completed utilizing drone technology.  Deliverables will include a 3D 
point cloud of the corridor and also identify vegetation and other clearance issues.  

2023 Goal = 3,500

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

5,500

6,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

V
a
lv

e
s
 O

p
e
ra

te
d

Month

2023 Valve Operations Program 
Core Services - Water Maintenance & Construction

2023 2022 2021 2020 Goal

2023 Goal = 3,650

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

5,500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

H
y
d

ra
n

ts
 O

p
e
ra

te
d

Month

2023 Hydrant Operations Program 
Core Services - Water  Maintenance & Construction

2023 2022 2021 2020 Goal

69



SAFETY / COMPLIANCE & PUBLIC AFFAIRS 

May 2023 

1. Safety 
 

TRAINING 
Total Required 

Enrollments 
Completions as of 

4/30/2023 
Percent 

Complete 

April 2023 420 420 100% 

Calendar Year to 
4/30/2023 

1358 1358 100% 

 

SAFETY TEAMS Total Members Members Attending 
Percent 

Attending 

April 2023 29 25 86.2% 

Calendar Year to 
4/30/2023 

109 89 81.7% 

 

INCIDENTS 
Reports 

Submitted 
OSHA Cases1 RPU RIR2 BLS RIR3 

April 2023 3 1 -- -- 

Calendar Year to 
4/30/2023 

12 2 3.24 1.5 

 

1 Deemed to meet OSHA criteria as a recordable case by RPU Safety Manager, subject to change 
2 Recordable Incident Rate – Number of OSHA Recordable Cases per 100 employees.   
3 Bureau of Labor Statistics nonfatal illnesses and injuries in the utility sector 

 

 

23 of RPU’s 24 departments are recordable injury free in 2023 
207 of RPU’s 208 employees are recordable injury free in 2023 

 

 

70



2023 OSHA Recordable Case Detail 

Work Area 
Incident 

Date 
Description 

Primary Reason 
it’s a Recordable 

Corrective Action 

T&D 3/13/2023 
Slipped and fell onto shovel causing 
torso (L) pain 

Restricted Duty N/A 

T&D 4/1/2023 
Slipped off ladder, fell to ground 
causing pain to back, elbow (L) and 
neck. 

Restricted Duty 
Reviewed work 
practices with those 
involved 

 

SAFETY INITIATIVES 

1. Received safety award plaques from the APPA and Minnesota Safety Council 

2. Completed the majority of line worker annual skills evaluations covering 13 

subjects 

3. Completed site visits of solar installations in order to develop appropriate 

lockout/tagout procedures. 

2. Environmental & Regulatory Affairs 

 The 21st Annual Arbor Day Celebration took place on April 28th at Three Links / Silver 
Lake Park. There were approximately 2,000 elementary students in attendance and 
many RPU volunteers to help make this year’s celebration a major success. 
 

 On April 1st, RPU met with staff from the Water Reclamation Plant to discuss copper 
levels in the water. Copper occurs naturally in the groundwater at very low levels. Most 
of the copper in drinking water is from copper plumbing. Rochester WRP is analyzing all 
copper sources to keep levels as low as possible from the waste water. 
 

 On April 4th, Todd Osweiler met with Mayo staff to learn more about their proposed geo-
exchange wells in downtown Rochester. Mayo is proposing to utilize these wells to help 
offset their heating and cooling demands. 
 

3. Communications 
 

 Tony Benson attended the APPA Communicators Roundtable with other utility 
communicators at the APPA offices. This is a great opportunity to share ideas and 
opportunities with one another. 

 May 7-13th was AWWA National Drinking Water Week. The week was an opportunity to 
celebrate having safe, clean drinking water and recognize those working hard to ensure 
that! 

 For the month of May, we have been running a radio and TV ad promoting the 
importance of using caution in and near RPU work zones to ensure all RPU employees 
make it home safe after the work day. 

71



 Dirk and Tony attended a MISO communicators briefing on MISO Summer Readiness 
and Planning Resource Auction Discussion virtual meeting. They covered key 
messaging and timing based on the MISO resource auction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72



RPU Environmental Stewardship Metric

Tons CO2 Saved
 (12 Month Rolling Sum)

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23

24,733 24,561
25,837

23,246
22,007 21,199

16,212
17,449 18,067

14,087
11,996

8,143

12,025

8,735
9,515

10,130

10,512

10,723 10,705

10,716
10,563 10,275

10,275

10,275

9,131

7,732

690
711

483

406
428

472

472

472 472

472

472

472

472

34,159
34,787

36,450

34,163
33,158

32,376

27,400
28,484 28,814

24,835

22,744

17,746

20,229

Reduced Energy Usage - Conservation Rebates Hydroelectric Generation Waste-to-Energy Generation (OWEF)

Published: 5/8/2023 4:37 PM73



POWER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 

MAY 2023 

Portfolio Optimization 

 

1. In April, RPU continued to bid GT1, GT2 and WES into the MISO day-ahead and real-
time markets. GT2 and WES are also capable of participating in the ancillary services 
market.  

 
a. Ancillary Service Market – Supplemental Reserves 

i. Cleared DA 
1. GT2 –  26 days 
2. WES – 25 days 

ii. Deployment YTD 
1. GT2 –  0 
2. WES – 0 

 
b. Dispatched by MISO 

i. GT1 –    0 times  YTD       0 times 
ii. GT2 –   5 times  YTD     20 times 
iii. WES –  8 times   YTD     29 times 

 
c. Hours of Operation 

i. GT1 –     14 hours  YTD      14 hours 
ii. GT2 –     28 hours  YTD      99 hours 
iii. WES –    47 hours  YTD    151 hours 

 
d. Electricity Generated 

i. GT1 –        237 MWh  YTD      238 MWh 
ii. GT2 –        783 MWh  YTD   2,490 MWh 
iii. WES –    1,105 MWh  YTD   4,125 MWh 

 
e. Forced Outage  

i. GT1 –       0 hours   YTD      168 hours 
ii. GT2 –       0 hours  YTD      215 hours 
iii. WES –      0 hours   YTD          6 hours 

 
2. MISO market Real Time Price averaged $1.55/MWh and Day Ahead Price averaged 

$6.32/MWh. 
 
 

 

 

74



CUSTOMER RELATIONS 
(Contact Center, Utility Programs and Services, Commercial and Residential) 

 
 

Stakeholder Engagement, Forums, and Meetings 

1. Customer Care leadership attended Customer Service (CS) Week May 2-4 in 

Charlotte, NC. CS Week is the premier annual educational and customer service 

conference serving electric, gas and water/wastewater utility professionals across 

North America and around the world. CS Week provides learning and networking 

opportunities in support of the utility CX Puzzle: Billing & Payments, Contact Center, 

Credit & Collections, Digital Engagement, Disruptors, Field Services, and Strategies & 

Analytics. 

2. Utility Programs and Services met with Madison Gas and Electric (MGE) to discuss 

and learn more about their EV fleet study program. MGE has partnered with 

Sawatch Labs to provide free EV fleet studies to their non-profit customers. Sawatch 

Labs is also the vendor for the Xcel Energy fleet study program. 

3. Utility Programs and Services attended the Star Energy hosted “DER Summit” in 

Alexandria, MN. The DER Summit provided a refresher on the Minnesota DER 

Interconnection Process, a highlight of the NOVA Power Portal, and a discussion of 

the present and future of energy solutions. 

4. Utility Program and Services participated in the monthly Drive Electric Minnesota 

Member meeting. This workgroup brings together utility personnel within the State 

of Minnesota to discuss all the parts and players in the electric vehicle industry. 

Events/Opportunities for Customers 

1. Utility Programs and Services hosted a class titled “Electric Vehicles – Are They 

Right for You?” through Community Education on Thursday, May 4. We had 22 

people registered for the class. 

2. Utility Programs and Services, along with the Manager of Portfolio and Optimization 

and Power Resources’ Electric & Controls/Maintenance Supervisor, hosted a tour 

for the local ASHRAE chapter at Westside Energy Station on Tuesday, May 16.  

3. Utility Programs and Services is collaborating with Haley Comfort Systems on two 

Heat Pump 101 education classes on Tuesday, May 16. 

4. Utility Programs and Services will hold a Neighborhood Energy Challenge workshop 

with Community Education on Wednesday, May 24. 

75



5. Customer Care and Collections continue to make outreach calls to customers with 

past due balances on their accounts. The intent is to be proactive and connect these 

customers with outside resources for financial assistance. During the month of April, 

1,193 customers were called.  

6. The payment kiosk was installed the week of April 24. This is located in the RPU 

vestibule where customers have access 24/7.  Since go-live, 29 transactions have 

processed via the kiosk - 19 cash payments, 3 check, and 7 credit card payments.  

 

 

 YTD Savings: 5,745,702 kWh 

 Percent to kWh Goal: 32.6% 

  

76



 
 Total Customers Enrolled: 70 
 2021 =   1 
 2021 = 60 
 2022 =   8 
 2023 =   1 

 

 
 Total Customers Enrolled: 69 
 SolarChoice = 6 
 Solar = 21 
 Electric Vehicle = 22 
 Regular Residential (Other) = 21 

77



 

 

 
 Total Customers Enrolled: 77 
 2021 = 70 
 2022 =   9 
 2023 =  -2 

 

 
 Total Customers Enrolled: 77 
 Round Up = 38 
 Fixed Amount = 39  

78



 

 Total Number of Calls: 4,877 (graphed above) 

 

 

 Total Number in Dollars Processed by Representatives: $1,722,079 (graphed above) 

 Total Number of Transactions Processed by Representatives: 3,601 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Number of Calls Handled

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Total Transactions Processed by Customer 
Care

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

79



 

 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
1. Business Services: 

 Payroll/HR – Coordinated the onboarding of three full time employees, two limited 

term employee and the retirement of one employee. 

 Met with the MN Department of Labor and Industry updating our apprentice program 

standards.   

 In coordination with the IT team, implemented a preferred name process to enable 

employees to use a preferred name instead of their legal name when possible.  

Some legal documents will still need to use legal name, however Email and similar 

internal communication does not. 

 SharePoint site – completed the rebuild and migration of content from the 2010 

SharePoint intranet to the current Microsoft 365 SharePoint environment. The 

organization and navigation have been updated and the unused content removed.  

We are still working to provide support for the departments that used SharePoint for 

work management calendars which are not supported in the current MS 360 version. 

 Arbor Day – created maps, signs, tree tags and other graphic materials to support 

this event. 

 
 Purchasing and Materials Management:  

 Marion Road duct bank project bid is closed and being evaluated. 
 Well house #42 is being rebid with some modifications. 
 GT2 painting project is out for bid. 
 Pole attachment audit request for proposals is active. 
 The purchasing team continues to work on transformer shortages by considering 

additional sources and working to source rehabilitated units when possible. 

3524 3588 3445

2125

0 0676 549 800 865 619 231

5589

5095

5807

3761

5835

1645

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 (April)

BACKFLOW PROGRAM
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL

letters sent calls received tests completed

80



 

 

 

 

 

 

Note:   Increase in September 2022 Invoiced amount was due to wire annual order. 
Decrease in Invoice activity in March 2023 is due to one less week of check runs within 
the reporting period. 

 
 

2. Finance and Accounting: 
General  

 The Finance and Accounting team is working on the budget process. Managers have 
reviewed requests for additional employees with their department Directors and have 
submitted to the Finance Team. Managers are currently updating detailed cost 
center submissions. The finance team is updating and rolling prior year and 2023 
actual information through April into the budgeting system.  

 The Finance team completed the initial data request for the Electric Utility cost of 
service study. The results and recommendations of this study will be presented to 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

 -

 100,000.00

 200,000.00

 300,000.00

 400,000.00

 500,000.00

 600,000.00

 700,000.00

 800,000.00

Purchase Order Count and Dollars 
Invoiced 

$ Invoiced

PO Count

70

570

1070

1570

2070

Warehouse Transactions Count  
All Plants

2021

2022

2023

81



 

 

the Board in August 2023 to support rate recommendations during the budget 
process. 

 After internal preparation and customer notification in April, the Utility started non pay 
disconnections on May 1st. The collections and customer care teams continue to 
work closely to help customers apply for the water and energy assistance funds that 
are available. 

 Barb Button, the Lead Collections Technician, will be retiring on December 13, 2023.  
We are actively working to refill her position. The intent is to have some overlap time 
for training. 

 The Governmental Accounting Standard Board statement 96 for the accounting of 
subscription based information technology arrangements has to be implemented in 
2023. The finance team is working to complete an inventory of all software 
subscriptions currently in place. The result of this implementation will be similar to 
the implementation of the lease accounting standard in 2022. Subscriptions with a 
term of more than 12 months will be shown as an asset and liability on the balance 
sheet and amortized over the life of the subscription. 

 We are working with Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors to complete the required 
arbitrage calculations for the 2013B refunding bond issue. 

 The semi-annual bond interest payment of approximately $3.2M will be made on 
May 31, 2023.  

 

 Information Services: 

 The IT team is working with the City IT team to refine and train on our IT incident 
response plans. As an organization, we continue to work on employee cyber security 
education and the mitigation of identified vulnerabilities. 
 

3. Financial Results: 
 
Note:  Budget numbers are compared to the Board approved 2023 budget which is adjusted 

for 2022 approved projects not completed in 2022 and carried over to 2023.   
 

 

 
 
 
 

82



 

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

MONTH ACTUAL FORECAST % DIFF ACTUAL FORECAST % DIFF

MWH MWH MW MW

JAN 98,317 101,577 -3.2% 166.2 174.5 -4.8%

FEB 88,358 91,538 -3.5% 162.7 170.2 -4.4%

MAR 94,140 90,382 4.2% 150.1 152.4 -1.5%

APR 86,360 84,706 2.0% 174.5 150.9 15.7%

MAY 207.1

JUN 248.2

JUL 269.6

AUG 243.8

SEP 246.1

OCT 167.8

NOV 148.9

DEC 167.6

YTD 367,175 368,203 -0.3

HISTORICAL SYSTEM PEAK 292.1 MW  07/20/2011

% DIFF = (ACTUAL / FORECAST X 100) - 100

MWH = MEGAWATT HOUR = 1000 KILOWATT HOURS

MW = MEGAWATT = 1000 KILOWATTS

        Jeremy Sutton, Director of Power Resources

        Tina Livingston, Senior Financial Analyst

        LOAD FORECAST SUMMARY FOR 2023

SYSTEM ENERGY PEAK SYSTEM DATA

83



Energy Required for the Month (MWH)

Peak Demand for the Month (MW)

2023 YTD SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 ACTUAL

2023 FORECAST

2022 ACTUAL

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2023 ACTUAL

2023 FORECAST

2022 ACTUAL

84



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR
GM - Actual 4.43 4.31 4.26 4.09 4.44 5.77 7.42 6.50 6.31 4.53 3.69 5.12 4.66 4.45 4.45 4.57

GM - Budget 4.44 4.40 4.06 4.47 4.27 5.67 7.02 7.30 6.24 5.08 4.13 4.58 5.14 4.81 4.55 4.25

GM % YTD - Actual 37.7% 38.3% 38.5% 38.7% 38.5% 39.1% 40.4% 40.9% 41.5% 41.5% 40.9% 40.7% 37.6% 37.9% 37.3% 37.4%

GM % YTD - Budget 38.0% 38.6% 38.4% 38.0% 37.9% 38.6% 39.3% 40.2% 40.7% 40.8% 40.6% 40.5% 41.0% 41.1% 40.9% 40.8%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

 -

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

YTD GM
Percent

Dollars
(in Millions)

2022 - 2023 Retail Gross Margin - Electric Utility

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

Chg Net Position - Actual 1,475 681 140 1,235 867 1,499 1,278 3,371 3,557 1,693 1,845 (1,195) 1,132 295 530 1,309

Chg Net Position - Budget 20 620 (528) (272) (446) 2,595 2,216 1,895 7,806 6,513 (10) 5,627 1,675 3,386 604 931

Net Position - YTD Actual 1,475 2,156 2,296 3,532 4,399 5,898 7,176 10,547 14,104 15,797 17,642 16,446 1,132 1,427 1,958 3,266

Net Position - YTD Budget 20 640 112 (160) (606) 1,990 4,206 6,101 13,907 20,421 20,411 26,038 1,675 5,061 5,665 6,596

 (5,000)

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

D
ol

la
rs

 
(In

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

2022 - 2023 Change in Net Position - Electric Utility

85



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr
Unreserved Cash 42.30 43.93 46.18 44.28 46.19 47.22 46.14 51.01 51.69 52.13 53.65 46.86 46.95 47.15 49.23 48.74

Capital & Major Maint 19.19 19.21 19.09 19.22 18.90 18.43 18.45 18.25 17.51 16.88 16.81 16.24 17.39 16.89 16.48 15.60

Working Funds 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.87 20.55 20.55 20.55 20.55

Contingency 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.25 11.97 11.97 11.97 11.97

Clean Air Rider 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.95 5.33 5.33 5.33 5.33 5.33

Spl Cap & Maj Maint 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.80

Total (Excluding Debt Service) 102.85 104.50 106.64 104.86 106.46 107.02 105.95 110.63 110.56 110.37 111.82 103.86 105.98 105.69 107.36 105.98

Min Reserve (Policy - Ex Debt Service) 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 60.55 59.03 59.03 59.03 59.03

 -

 10.00

 20.00

 30.00

 40.00

 50.00

 60.00

 70.00

 80.00

 90.00

 100.00

 110.00

Dollars 
(In Millions)

2022 - 2023 Cash Reserves - Electric Utility

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2022 Actual 3.66 3.61 3.60 3.58 3.63 3.47 3.21 3.23 3.29 2.94 2.98 2.68

2023 Budget 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08 3.08

2023 Actual 2.69 2.66 2.69 2.73

Rating Goal 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Bond Covernant 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

 1.00

 1.50

 2.00

 2.50

 3.00

 3.50

 4.00

Times

Month

2022 - 2023 Debt Coverage Ratio - Electric Utility

86



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR

Gross Margin - Actual 337 351 159 362 400 827 866 914 563 628 566 928 530 446 477 400

Gross Margin - Budget 188 229 148 202 164 210 478 354 312 313 248 303 466 428 457 477

Gross Margin % YTD - Actual 31.0% 36.9% 34.0% 35.4% 34.9% 36.3% 37.1% 37.2% 37.9% 38.9% 39.7% 41.2% 50.84% 47.8% 48.9% 50.6%

Gross Margin % YTD - Budget 39.6% 40.2% 39.8% 39.0% 38.6% 38.1% 38.0% 38.9% 40.0% 40.5% 41.4% 42.1% 39.1% 39.4% 40.9% 42.3%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

50.0%

55.0%

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

 800

 900

 1,000

YTD GM
Percent

Dollars
(in Thousands)

2022 - 2023 Gross Margin - Steam/Wholesale Electric

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR

GM - Actual 666 657 665 669 747 832 907 858 838 698 687 684 717 701 730 720

GM - Budget 690 663 700 706 750 806 867 884 831 736 670 704 754 722 731 741

GM % YTD - Actual 80.0% 80.8% 80.4% 80.4% 81.0% 81.1% 81.1% 81.1% 81.0% 80.7% 80.8% 80.8% 81.11% 81.6% 81.5% 81.2%

GM % YTD - Budget 83.4% 83.6% 83.5% 83.5% 83.4% 83.2% 83.0% 82.9% 82.9% 82.9% 82.9% 83.0% 82.9% 82.7% 82.9% 83.1%

50.0%

55.0%

60.0%

65.0%

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

 800

 900

 1,000

YT
D

 G
M

 P
er

ce
nt

D
ol

la
rs

(in
 T

ho
us

an
ds

)

2022 - 2023 Gross Margin - Water Utility

87



Jan Feb Mar Apr Mar Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

Chg Net Position - Actual 161 91 97 157 186 160 157 242 281 93 72 3,660 207 124 126 220

Chg Net Position - Budget 85 74 37 (203) (29) 85 119 489 161 (75) 52 1,055 207 75 108 91

Net Position - YTD Actual 161 252 349 506 692 852 1,008 1,250 1,531 1,624 1,696 5,357 207 331 457 677

Net Position - YTD Budget 85 159 197 (6) (35) 50 169 658 820 744 796 1,851 207 282 390 481

 (1,000)

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

D
ol

la
rs

 
(In

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

2022 - 2023 Change in Net Position - Water Utility

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

Unreserved Cash 5.75 5.82 6.08 6.00 6.28 6.37 6.41 6.95 6.89 7.32 7.48 7.67 6.53 6.74 6.86 7.21

Capital & MM 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 3.64 4.45 4.45 4.45 4.45

Contingency 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.73 1.73 1.73 1.73

Working Funds 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19

Total 12.22 12.30 12.55 12.47 12.76 12.84 12.89 13.42 13.37 13.79 13.96 14.15 13.90 14.11 14.23 14.58

Min Reserver (Policy) 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 6.47 7.37 7.37 7.37 7.37

 -

 2.00

 4.00

 6.00

 8.00

 10.00

 12.00

 14.00

 16.00

D
ol

la
rs

 
(In

 M
ill

io
ns

)

2022 - 2023 Cash Reserves - Water Utility

88



ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

INDEX
K:\RPU\GA\FINANCIAL REPORTS\ FINANCIALS CRMO.pdf

DATE:

TO:

From: Judith Anderson (507) 292-1217
Controller

SUBJ: RPU  -  Financial Statements

RPU  -  ELECTRIC UTILITY  Financial Reports

Page # REPORT TITLE:

1 Statement of Net Position - Condensed

2 Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

 & Changes in Net Position YTD

3 Statement of Cash Flows YTD

4 - 5 Production and Sales Statistics - YTD

6 GRAPH - Capital Expenditures

7 GRAPH - Major Maintenance Expenditures

8 GRAPH - Cash & Temporary Investments

9 GRAPH - Changes in Net Position

10 GRAPH - Bonds

RPU  -  WATER UTILITY  Financial Reports

Page # REPORT TITLE:

11 Statement of Net Position - Condensed

12 Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

 & Changes in Net Position YTD

13 Statement of Cash Flows YTD

14 Production and Sales Statistics - YTD

15 GRAPH - Capital Expenditures

16 GRAPH - Major Maintenance Expenditures

17 GRAPH - Cash & Temporary Investments

18 GRAPH - Changes in Net Position

END OF BOARD PACKET FINANCIALS

April  2023

89



1 5/11/2023

2

3

4

5

6

7 April 2023 April 2022 Difference %  Diff. March   2023

8 ASSETS
9 CURRENT  ASSETS
10 CASH & INVESTMENTS
11 Unreserved Cash & Investments 48,738,662 44,284,680 4,453,982 10.1 49,233,552

12 BOARD RESERVED CASH & INVESTMENTS
13 Clean Air Rider Reserve 5,332,022 5,948,601 (616,579) (10.4) 5,332,022
14 Working Funds Reserve 20,545,000 20,867,000 (322,000) (1.5) 20,545,000
15 Special Capital & Major Maintnce Reserve 3,800,638 3,300,818 499,820 15.1 3,800,638
16 Contingency Reserve 11,970,000 11,251,000 719,000 6.4 11,970,000
17 General Capital & Major Maintnce Reserve 15,597,868 19,217,758 (3,619,890) (18.8) 16,476,701

18 Total Reserved Cash & Investments 57,245,528 60,585,178 (3,339,649) (5.5) 58,124,361
19 Total Cash & Investments 105,984,191 104,869,858 1,114,332 1.1 107,357,913
20 Receivables & Accrued Utility Revenues 31,525,232 21,791,672 9,733,559 44.7 29,220,469
21 Inventory 9,088,799 7,725,250 1,363,550 17.7 9,294,221

22 Other Current Assets 2,549,441 2,002,300 547,141 27.3 2,623,571
23 RESTRICTED ASSETS
24 Restricted Cash and Equivalents 5,704,111 5,705,799 (1,688) (0.0) 4,563,289
25    Total Current Assets 154,851,774 142,094,879 12,756,895 9.0 153,059,464

26 NON-CURRENT  ASSETS
27 RESTRICTED ASSETS
28 RESTRICTED CASH & INVESTMENTS

29 Debt Service Reserve 12,071,384 12,072,991 (1,607) (0.0) 12,071,305

30 Funds Held in Trust 49 0 49 0.0 49
31 Total Restricted Cash & Investments 12,071,433 12,072,991 (1,558) (0.0) 12,071,354
32 Total Restricted Assets 12,071,433 12,072,991 (1,558) (0.0) 12,071,354
33 CAPITAL ASSETS
34 NON-DEPRECIABLE ASSETS
35 Land and Land Rights 11,264,662 11,264,662 0 0.0 11,264,662
36 Construction Work in Progress 31,889,748 18,879,973 13,009,775 68.9 30,384,178

37 Total Non-depreciable Assets 43,154,411 30,144,635 13,009,775 43.2 41,648,840

38 DEPRECIABLE ASSETS
39 Utility Plant in Service, Net 240,843,377 244,885,305 (4,041,928) (1.7) 241,997,371
40 Steam Assets, Net 785,486 1,080,043 (294,557) (27.3) 810,032
41 Total Depreciable Assets 241,628,863 245,965,348 (4,336,485) (1.8) 242,807,403
42    Net Capital Assets 284,783,273 276,109,983 8,673,290 3.1 284,456,243
43 Other Non-Current Assets 11,615,409 11,690,258 (74,849) (0.6) 11,647,189

44    Total Non-Current Assets 308,470,115 299,873,232 8,596,882 2.9 308,174,786

45 TOTAL ASSETS 463,321,888 441,968,111 21,353,777 4.8 461,234,251

46 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
47 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6,586,454 8,221,838 (1,635,384) (19.9) 6,771,035
48 TOTAL ASSETS + DEFERRED OUTFLOW RESOURCE 469,908,342 450,189,949 19,718,393 4.4 468,005,286

49 LIABILITIES
50 CURRENT LIABILITIES
51 Accounts Payable 11,080,393 10,279,168 801,225 7.8 11,036,160
52 Due to other funds 3,609,617 3,517,159 92,458 2.6 3,502,170
53 Customer Deposits 2,285,943 2,099,573 186,370 8.9 2,294,163

54 Compensated absences 2,252,783 2,125,199 127,584 6.0 2,209,292
55 Accrued Salaries & Wages 493,046 440,252 52,794 12.0 487,243
56 Interest Payable 2,622,862 2,753,716 (130,854) (4.8) 2,098,289
57 Current Portion of Long Term Debt 7,395,000 7,085,000 310,000 4.4 7,395,000
58 Misc Other Current Liabilities 5,387 2,548 2,839 111.4 5,129
59    Total Current Liabilities 29,745,031 28,302,615 1,442,416 5.1 29,027,447

60 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
61 Compensated absences 1,655,234 1,635,413 19,821 1.2 1,666,507
62 Other Non-Current Liabilities 19,020,462 10,112,060 8,908,402 88.1 19,020,462
63 Unearned Revenues 1,806,301 1,617,958 188,344 11.6 1,639,975
64 Long-Term Debt 158,232,212 167,025,458 (8,793,246) (5.3) 158,340,091
65    Total Non-Current Liabilities 180,714,209 180,390,889 323,320 0.2 180,667,035
66 TOTAL LIABILITIES 210,459,240 208,693,503 1,765,736 0.8 209,694,483

67 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
68 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 11,342,148 9,570,408 1,771,740 18.5 11,512,680

69 NET POSITION
70 Net Investment in Capital Assets 130,161,100 113,095,960 17,065,139 15.1 130,268,157
71 Total Restricted Net Position 3,081,298 2,952,083 129,215 4.4 2,465,048
72 Unrestricted Net Position 114,864,556 115,877,994 (1,013,438) (0.9) 114,064,917
73    TOTAL NET POSITION 248,106,954 231,926,038 16,180,917 7.0 246,798,122
74 TOTAL LIAB,DEFERRED INFLOWS,NET POSITION 469,908,342 450,189,949 19,718,393 4.4 468,005,286

ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ELECTRIC UTILITY

April 30, 2023

1 5/11/2023     3:03 PM 90



1 5/11/2023

2

3

4

5

6

7 Actual YTD
Original 

Budget YTD
Actual to 

Original Budget % Var.
Last Yr       

Actual YTD

8 SALES REVENUE
9 Retail Revenue
10 Electric - Residential Service 18,398,654 18,229,290 169,364 0.9 17,587,124
11 Electric - General & Industrial Service 27,939,058 25,947,247 1,991,811 7.7 25,319,716
12 Electric - Public Street & Highway Light 467,569 561,023 (93,454) (16.7) 462,342
13 Electric - Rental Light Revenue 64,698 69,663 (4,966) (7.1) 63,373
14 Electric - Interdepartmentl Service 339,412 280,060 59,351 21.2 307,152
15 Electric - Power Cost Adjustment 579,704 238,830 340,874 142.7 (265,174)

16 Electric - Clean Air Rider 660,232 645,200 15,032 2.3 690,255
17 Electric - Total Retail Revenue 48,449,326 45,971,313 2,478,012 5.4 44,164,788

18 Wholesale Electric Revenue
19 Energy & Fuel Reimbursement 492,608 836,057 (343,449) (41.1) 774,237

20 Capacity & Demand 1,088,554 1,118,471 (29,916) (2.7) 311,957

21 Total Wholesale Electric Revenue 1,581,162 1,954,528 (373,366) (19.1) 1,086,194

22 Steam Sales Revenue 2,077,044 2,368,956 (291,913) (12.3) 2,328,031

23 TOTAL SALES REVENUE 52,107,531 50,294,797 1,812,734 3.6 47,579,014

24 COST OF REVENUE
25 Purchased Power 30,323,377 27,208,570 3,114,807 11.4 27,083,803
26 Generation Fuel, Chemicals & Utilities 1,806,031 2,495,332 (689,301) (27.6) 2,205,336
27 TOTAL COST OF REVENUE 32,129,408 29,703,902 2,425,506 8.2 29,289,139

28 GROSS MARGIN
29 Retail 18,125,949 18,762,743 (636,794) (3.4) 17,080,985

30 Wholesale 1,852,175 1,828,152 24,022 1.3 1,208,890
31 TOTAL GROSS MARGIN 19,978,123 20,590,896 (612,772) (3.0) 18,289,875

32 FIXED EXPENSES
33 Utilities Expense 170,686 170,437 249 0.1 180,214
34 Depreciation & Amortization 5,047,858 5,031,440 16,418 0.3 4,914,959
35 Salaries & Benefits 8,184,145 7,505,027 679,119 9.0 6,997,918
36 Materials, Supplies & Services 3,767,152 4,652,237 (885,085) (19.0) 3,704,103

37 Inter-Utility Allocations (640,405) (661,000) 20,595 3.1 (624,090)

38 TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES 16,529,437 16,698,141 (168,704) (1.0) 15,173,103

39 Other Operating Revenue 3,186,849 3,347,808 (160,959) (4.8) 3,381,673

40 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 6,635,535 7,240,563 (605,028) (8.4) 6,498,445

41 NON-OPERATING REVENUE / (EXPENSE)
42 Investment Income (Loss) 801,325 340,342 460,982 135.4 384,887
43 Interest Expense (1,739,540) (1,739,297) (243) (0.0) (1,792,488)
44 Amortization of Debt Issue Costs (33,364) (33,364) 0 0.0 (35,200)

45 Miscellaneous - Net (4,436) (6,750) 2,314 34.3 (11,104)

46 TOTAL NON-OPERATING REV (EXP) (976,015) (1,439,069) 463,054 32.2 (1,453,906)

47

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS / CAPITAL 
CONTRIBUTIONS 5,659,520 5,801,494 (141,974) (2.4) 5,044,539

48 Transfers Out (2,970,946) (3,014,454) 43,508 1.4           (2,753,052)

49 Capital Contributions 577,893 3,635,123 (3,057,231) (84.1) 1,240,398

50 CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,266,467 6,422,164 (3,155,697) (49.1)        3,531,885

51 Net Position, Beginning 244,840,487 228,394,152

52 NET POSITION, ENDING 248,106,954 231,926,038

53

54 Rolling 12 Months Planned for Curr Year
55 Debt Coverage Ratio 2.73 3.08

ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position

April,  2023

YEAR TO DATE

2 5/11/2023     3:03 PM

91



05/11/23

1 ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

2 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

3 ELECTRIC UTILITY

4 FOR

5 APRIL,  2023

6 YEAR-TO-DATE

7 Actual YTD Last Yr Actual YTD

8 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

9    Cash Received From Customers 55,057,121 48,616,350

10    Cash Received From Other Revenue Sources 0 2,548,890

11    Cash Received From Wholesale & Steam Customer 4,266,620 3,372,634

12    Cash Paid for:

13        Purchased Power (30,805,824) (27,561,855)

14        Operations and Maintenance (12,055,886) (11,432,852)

15     Fuel (2,022,263) (2,353,771)

16     Payment in Lieu of Taxes (3,012,855) (2,813,840)

17    Net Cash Provided by(Used in) Utility

18    Operating Activities 11,426,913 10,375,556

19    Sewer, Storm Water, Sales Tax & MN Water Fee Collections

20          Receipts from Customers 15,266,757 14,400,656

21          Remittances to Government Agencies (15,044,209) (14,295,202)

22    Net Cash Provided by(Used in) Non-Utility

23    Operating Activities 222,548 105,454

24 NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN)

25 OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,649,461 10,481,010

26 CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED

27    FINANCING ACTIVITIES

28    Additions to Utility Plant & Other Assets (5,079,791) (4,753,917)

29    Payments related to Service Territory Acquisition (46,834) (49,804)

30    Proceeds on Long-Term Debt 0 0

31    Net Bond/Loan Receipts 0 0

32    Cash Paid for Interest & Commissions 0 0

33    NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN)

34 CAPITAL & RELATED ACTIVITIES (5,126,625) (4,803,721)

35 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

36    Interest Earnings on Investments 168,755 (15,666)

37    Construction Fund (Deposits)Draws 0 0

38    Bond Reserve Account (4,563,583) (4,564,640)

39 Escrow/Trust Account Activity 0 0

40    NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN)

41 INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,394,828) (4,580,306)

42 Net Increase(Decrease) in Cash & Investments 2,128,008 1,096,983

43 Cash & Investments, Beginning of Period 103,856,182 103,772,874

44 CASH & INVESTMENTS, END OF PERIOD 105,984,190 104,869,857

45 Externally Restricted Funds 17,775,544 17,778,790

46 Grand Total 123,759,734 122,648,647

 3

92



5/12/2023

1 ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

2 PRODUCTION & SALES STATISTICS
3 ELECTRIC UTILITY

4 April, 2023

5 YEAR-TO-DATE

6 Last Yr

7 Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance % Var. Actual YTD
8

9 ENERGY SUPPLY (kWh) (primarily calendar month)

10 Net Generation
11 IBM Diesel Generators 7,797                 0                    7,797               -           17,234               
12 Lake Zumbro Hydro 4,364,980          3,650,476          714,504           19.6         3,318,968          
13 Cascade Creek Gas Turbine 2,727,858          4,071,000          (1,343,142)       (33.0)        1,891,848          

14 Westside Energy Station 4,327,050          5,892,000          (1,564,950)       (26.6)        8,484,100          

15 Total Net Generation 11,427,685        13,613,476        (2,185,791)       (16.1)        13,712,150        

16 Other Power Supply

17 Firm Purchases 362,759,832      364,413,949      (1,654,117)       (0.5)          364,786,478      

18 Non-Firm Purchases 198,715             138,910             59,805             43.1         121,702             
19 LRP Received 0                    0                    0                  -           0                    

20 Total Other Power Supply 362,958,547      364,552,859      (1,594,312)       (0.4)          364,908,180      

21 TOTAL ENERGY SUPPLY 374,386,232      378,166,335      (3,780,103)       (1.0)          378,620,330      

22 ENERGY USES (kWh) (primarily billing period)

23 Retail Sales # Custs

24 Electric - Residential Service 53,589               114,305,355      118,761,517      (4,456,162)       (3.8)          119,453,895      

25 Electric - General Service & Industrial 5,150                 236,242,920      236,261,083      (18,163)            (0.0)          231,231,133      

26 Electric - Street &  Highway Lighting 3                        1,116,011          1,192,461          (76,450)            (6.4)          1,163,814          

27 Electric - Rental Lights n/a 238,022             254,800             (16,778)            (6.6)          254,074             

28 Electric - Interdptmntl Service 1                        2,203,263          1,974,464          228,799           11.6         2,215,227          

29      Total Customers 58,743               

30 Total Retail Sales 354,105,571      358,444,325      (4,338,754)       (1.2)          354,318,143      

31 Wholesale Sales 7,097,563          9,963,000          (2,865,437)       (28.8)        10,428,165        

32 Company Use 2,014,800          777,967             1,236,833        159.0       827,871             

33 TOTAL ENERGY USES 363,217,934      369,185,292      (5,967,358)       (1.6)          365,574,179      

34 Lost & Unaccntd For Last 12 Months 35,412,651        2.9%

35 STEAM SALES  (mlbs) (primarily billing period)

36 Steam Sales in Mlbs 125,136             144,000             (18,864)            (13.1)        137,550             

 4 5/12/2023   1:15 PM

93



5/12/2023

1 ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

2 PRODUCTION & SALES STATISTICS (continued)
3 ELECTRIC UTILITY

4 April, 2023

5 YEAR-TO-DATE

6 Last Yr

7 Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance % Var. Actual YTD
8

9 FUEL USAGE (calendar month)

10 Gas Burned

11 SLP 169,567 MCF 208,800 MCF (39,233) (18.8)         185,883 MCF

12 Cascade 22,445 MCF 48,264 MCF (25,819) (53.5)         17,283 MCF
13 Westside 32,475 MCF 46,547 MCF (14,072) (30.2)         68,015 MCF

14  Total Gas Burned 224,487 MCF 303,611 MCF (79,124) (26.1)         271,181 MCF

15 Oil Burned

16 Cascade 45,436 GAL 0 GAL 45,436 -           14,415 GAL

17 IBM 604 GAL 0 GAL 604 -           1,327 GAL

18  Total Oil Burned 46,040 GAL 0 GAL 46,040 -           15,742 GAL

 5 5/12/2023    1:15 PM

94



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
ELECTRIC

Current Year April,   2023  Prior Years Ending Dec 31st

2022 2021 2020

ANNUAL BUDGET 36,676,650   24,799,405            15,246,736  15,059,888  

ACTUAL YTD 2,574,735     11,061,355            7,041,030    10,078,628  

% OF BUDGET 7.0% 44.6% 46.2% 66.9%

 -

 2000

 4000

 6000

 8000

 10000

 12000

 14000

 16000

 18000

 20000

 22000

 24000

 26000

 28000

 30000

 32000

 34000

 36000

 38000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

MONTHS

YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL VS. BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL

6 5/15/2023   7:54 AM

95



MAJOR MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES
ELECTRIC

Current Year April,   2023
2022 2021 2020

ANNUAL BUDGET 4,849,716     8,589,452    3,815,243    4,010,088    

ACTUAL YTD 1,107,401     6,520,217    3,680,535    3,111,620    

% OF BUDGET 22.8% 75.9% 96.5% 77.6%

 Prior Years Ending Dec 31st

 -

 1000

 2000

 3000

 4000

 5000

 6000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

MONTHS

YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL VS. BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL

7 5/15/2023  7:54 AM 96



CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS
ELECTRIC

April,   2023

56,000

58,000

60,000

62,000

64,000

66,000

68,000

70,000

72,000

74,000

76,000

78,000

80,000

82,000

84,000

86,000

88,000

90,000

92,000

94,000

96,000

98,000

100,000

102,000

104,000

106,000

108,000

110,000

112,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

YEAR-TO-DATE 
ACTUAL 

Excluding:  Construction Fund, Debt Reserve, 
and Escrow Funds Accounts

ACTUAL MINIMUM RESERVE

8 5/15/2023   7:54 AM

97



CHANGE IN NET POSITION

ELECTRIC

April,   2023

(4,000)

0

4,000

8,000

12,000

16,000

20,000

24,000

28,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

YEAR-TO-DATE 
ACTUAL  vs.  BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL

9 5/15/2023    7:59 AM

98



4/30/2023

4/30/2023

 $-

 $2,000

 $4,000

 $6,000

 $8,000

 $10,000

 $12,000

 $14,000

 $16,000

2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047

P
ri

n
c

ip
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
s

t 
(i

n
 t

h
o

u
s

a
n

d
s)

Electric Debt Service Payments 
(2002 Bonds were redeemed in full on 4/1/2013; 2007C Bonds were partially redeemed on 11/17/2015 and redeemed in full on 2/15/17, 2013B Bonds were 

redeemed in full on 2/10/21)

2000 Bonds 2002 Bonds 2005 Note 2007 Bonds 2009 Note 2013A Bonds 2013B Bonds 2015E Bonds 2017A Bonds 2021A Bonds

 $-

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

 $100,000

 $120,000

 $140,000

 $160,000

 $180,000

 $200,000

2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047

in
 t

h
o

u
s

an
d

s

Electric Outstanding Debt
(as of End of Year)

2000 Bonds 2002 Bonds 2005 Note 2007 Bonds 2009 Note 2013A Bonds 2013B Bonds 2015E Bonds 2017A Bonds 2021A Bonds

 10 5/12/2023    2:33 PM

99



1 5/11/2023

2

3

4

5

6

7 April 2023 April 2022 Difference %  Diff. March   2023

8 ASSETS
9 CURRENT  ASSETS
10 CASH & INVESTMENTS
11 Unreserved Cash & Investments 7,208,478 5,989,321 1,219,157 20.4 6,859,555

12 BOARD RESERVED CASH & INVESTMENTS
13 Working Funds Reserve 1,190,000 1,175,000 15,000 1.3 1,190,000
14 Capital & Major Maintenance Reserve 4,445,000 3,635,000 810,000 22.3 4,445,000
15 Contingency Reserve 1,732,000 1,664,000 68,000 4.1 1,732,000
16 Total Reserved Cash & Investments 7,367,000 6,474,000 893,000 13.8 7,367,000
17 Total Cash & Investments 14,575,478 12,463,321 2,112,157 16.9 14,226,555

18 Receivables & Accrued Utility Revenues 599,047 886,604 (287,557) (32.4) 559,958
19 Inventory 279,020 244,155 34,865 14.3 273,007
20 Other Current Assets 73,276 96,917 (23,641) (24.4) 84,334

21    Total Current Assets 15,526,821 13,690,996 1,835,824 13.4 15,143,855

22 CAPITAL ASSETS
23 NON-DEPRECIABLE ASSETS

24 Land and Land Rights 742,667 677,486 65,180 9.6 742,667

25 Construction Work in Progress 8,213,297 8,769,980 (556,683) (6.3) 8,151,649

26 Total Non-depreciable Assets 8,955,964 9,447,467 (491,503) (5.2) 8,894,316

27 DEPRECIABLE ASSETS

28 Utility Plant in Service, Net 98,695,557 95,228,538 3,467,019 3.6 98,926,196
29    Net Capital Assets 107,651,521 104,676,005 2,975,516 2.8 107,820,512

30 Other Non-Current Assets 19,534,381 0 19,534,381 0.0 19,534,381

31    Total Non-Current Assets 127,185,902 104,676,005 22,509,897 21.5 127,354,893

32 TOTAL ASSETS 142,712,723 118,367,001 24,345,722 20.6 142,498,748

33 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
34 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 614,729 848,225 (233,496) (27.5) 635,672
35 TOTAL ASSETS + DEFERRED OUTLFOW RESOURCE 143,327,452 119,215,226 24,112,226 20.2 143,134,420

36 LIABILITIES
37 CURRENT LIABILITIES
38 Accounts Payable 176,412 202,102 (25,690) (12.7) 92,662
39 Due to Other Funds 0 0 0 0.0 0
40 Customer Deposits 125,311 81,812 43,500 53.2 126,713
41 Compensated Absences 301,174 310,008 (8,835) (2.8) 298,154
42 Accrued Salaries & Wages 62,912 60,014 2,898 4.8 63,040

43    Total Current Liabilities 665,809 653,936 11,873 1.8 580,569

44 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
45 Compensated Absences 158,473 164,073 (5,600) (3.4) 157,859
46 Other Non-Current Liabilities 2,400,013 1,335,994 1,064,020 79.6 2,400,013
47    Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,558,486 1,500,066 1,058,420 70.6 2,557,872

48 TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,224,294 2,154,002 1,070,292 49.7 3,138,441

49 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

50 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 19,446,411 1,932,427 17,513,984 906.3 19,559,013

51 NET POSITION
52 Net Investment in Capital Assets 107,651,521 104,676,005 2,975,516 2.8 107,820,512
53 Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) 13,005,226 10,452,793 2,552,433 24.4 12,616,454
54    TOTAL NET POSITION 120,656,747 115,128,797 5,527,950 4.8 120,436,966
55 TOTAL LIAB,DEFERRED INFLOWS,NET POSITION 143,327,452 119,215,226 24,112,226 20.2 143,134,420

ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
WATER UTILITY

April 30, 2023

11 5/11/2023     3:03 PM 100



1 5/11/2023

2

3

4

5

6

7 Actual YTD
Original 

Budget YTD
Actual to 

Original Budget % Var.
Last Yr       

Actual YTD

8 RETAIL REVENUE
9 Water - Residential Service 2,097,179 2,117,649 (20,470) (1.0) 1,988,835
10 Water - Commercial Service 995,724 1,019,386 (23,661) (2.3) 929,771
11 Water - Industrial Service 221,064 185,575 35,489 19.1 180,033
12 Water - Public Fire Protection 204,578 219,522 (14,944) (6.8) 199,778
13 Water - Interdepartmental Service 10,633 7,562 3,071 40.6 6,589

14 TOTAL RETAIL REVENUE 3,529,178 3,549,693 (20,515) (0.6) 3,305,006

15 COST OF REVENUE
16 Utilities Expense 353,865 302,552 51,313 17.0 317,996
17 Water Treatment Chemicals/Demin Water 52,230 41,171 11,059 26.9 50,097
18 Billing Fees 255,735 257,660 (1,925) (0.7) 278,919

19 TOTAL COST OF REVENUE 661,831 601,383 60,448 10.1 647,012

20 GROSS MARGIN 2,867,347 2,948,310 (80,962) (2.7) 2,657,994

21 FIXED EXPENSES
22 Depreciation & Amortization 957,701 1,013,800 (56,099) (5.5) 927,255
23 Salaries & Benefits 1,104,580 1,110,535 (5,955) (0.5) 923,473
24 Materials, Supplies & Services 281,666 294,771 (13,106) (4.4) 282,117
25 Inter-Utility Allocations 640,405 661,000 (20,595) (3.1) 624,090

26 TOTAL FIXED EXPENSES 2,984,351 3,080,106 (95,755) (3.1) 2,756,936

27 Other Operating Revenue 683,925 661,718 22,207 3.4 610,081

28 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 566,921 529,922 37,000 7.0 511,139

29 NON-OPERATING REVENUE / (EXPENSE)
30 Investment Income (Loss) 231,374 40,356 191,018 473.3 55,998
31 Interest Expense (24) 0 (24) 0.0 (1)
32 Miscellaneous - Net (13) 0 (13) 0.0 (249)
33 TOTAL NON-OPERATING REV (EXP) 231,336 40,356 190,981 473.2 55,748

34

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS / CAPITAL 
CONTRIBUTIONS 798,258 570,278 227,980 40.0 566,887

35 Transfers Out (121,474) (119,290) (2,184) (1.8) (107,526)
36 Capital Contributions 0 30,000 (30,000) (100.0) 46,208

37 CHANGE IN NET POSITION 676,783 480,988 195,796 40.7 505,569

38 Net Position, Beginning 119,979,964 114,623,228

39 NET POSITION, ENDING 120,656,747 115,128,797

ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position
WATER UTILITY

April,  2023
YEAR TO DATE

12 5/11/2023     3:03 PM

101



05/11/23

1 ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

2 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

3 WATER UTILITY

4 FOR

5 APRIL,  2023

6 YEAR-TO-DATE

7 Actual YTD Last Yr Actual YTD

8 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

9    Cash Received From Customers 5,325,841 4,775,094

10    Cash Paid for:

11         Operations and Maintenance (3,302,316) (2,626,404)

12      Payment in Lieu of Taxes (118,900) (106,954)

13    Net Cash Provided by(Used in) Utility

14    Operating Activities 1,904,625 2,041,736

15    Sales Tax & MN Water Fee Collections

16          Receipts from Customers 196,979 188,400

17          Remittances to Government Agencies (163,423) (157,974)

18    Net Cash Provided by(Used in) Non-Utility

19    Operating Activities 33,556 30,426

20 NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN)

21 OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,938,181 2,072,162

22 CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED

23    FINANCING ACTIVITIES

24    Additions to Utility Plant & Other Assets (1,741,301) (2,567,822)

25    Payment on Long-Term Debt 0 0

26    Net Loan Receipts 0 0

27    Cash Paid for Interest & Commissions 0 0

28    NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN)

29    CAPITAL & RELATED ACTIVITIES (1,741,301) (2,567,822)

30 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

31    Interest Earnings on Investments 231,350 55,996

32    NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN)

33    INVESTING ACTIVITIES 231,350 55,996

34 Net Increase(Decrease) in Cash & Investments 428,230 (439,664)

35 Cash & Investments, Beginning of Period 14,147,248 12,902,983

36 CASH & INVESTMENTS, END OF PERIOD 14,575,478 12,463,319

 13

102



5/12/2023

1 ROCHESTER PUBLIC UTILITIES

2 PRODUCTION & SALES STATISTICS
3 WATER UTILITY

4 April, 2023

5 YEAR-TO-DATE

6 Last Yr

7 Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance % Var. Actual YTD

8 (ccf) (ccf) (ccf)

9 PUMPAGE (primarily calendar month)

10 TOTAL PUMPAGE 1,647,406            1,608,024      39,382       2.4              1,593,314      

11 RETAIL SALES (primarily billing period)

# Custs

12 Water - Residential Service 37,681   720,923               797,134         (76,211)      (9.6)             729,510         

13 Water - Commercial Service 3,856     619,049               625,562         (6,513)        (1.0)             604,121         

14 Water - Industrial Service 22          214,297               178,342         35,955       20.2            181,588         

15 Water - Interdptmntl Service 1            8,503                   5,795             2,708         46.7            4,627             

16      Total Customers 41,560   

17 TOTAL RETAIL SALES 1,562,773         1,606,833    (44,060)    (2.7)             1,519,846    

18 Lost & Unaccntd For Last 12 Months 266,279            4.5%

 14 5/12/2023   1:15 PM

103



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
WATER

Current Year April,   2023
2022 2021 2020

ANNUAL BUDGET 6,508,342      4,878,440              6,807,825    5,917,740    

ACTUAL YTD 78,762           2,781,088              3,548,783    2,365,830    

% OF BUDGET 1.2% 57.0% 52.1% 40.0%

 Prior Years Ending Dec 31st

 -

 400

 800

 1200

 1600

 2000

 2400

 2800

 3200

 3600

 4000

 4400

 4800

 5200

 5600

 6000

 6400

 6800

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

YEAR-TO-DATE   

ACTUAL vs. BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL

15 5/15/2023   7:54 AM

104



MAJOR MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES
WATER

Current Year April,   2023
2022 2021 2020

ANNUAL BUDGET 796,090         1,015,476   528,408      552,500      

ACTUAL YTD 46,061           420,710      225,087      521,228      

% OF BUDGET 5.8% 41.4% 42.6% 94.3%

 Prior Years Ending Dec 31st

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

 800

 900

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

YEAR-TO-DATE   

ACTUAL vs. BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL

16 5/15/2023  [time] 105



CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

WATER

April,   2023

8,000

8,500

9,000

9,500

10,000

10,500

11,000

11,500

12,000

12,500

13,000

13,500

14,000

14,500

15,000

15,500

16,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL 

ACTUAL

17 5/15/2023   7:55 AM

106



CHANGE IN NET POSITION

WATER

April,   2023

(100)

300

700

1,100

1,500

1,900

2,300

2,700

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
  

(T
H

O
U

S
A

N
D

S
)

YEAR-TO-DATE 
ACTUAL  vs.  BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL

18 5/15/2023     8:00 AM

107


	Public Utility Board Agenda
	Item 3.A - Cover Page
	Item 3.A - 20230425 Minutes.pdf
	Item 3.B - Cover Page
	Item 3.B - 20230516 Minutes.pdf
	Item 3.C - Cover Page
	Item 3.C - AP Board List Current Month.pdf
	Item 3.D - Cover Page
	Item 3.D - 20230530 Resolution - 2023 Annual Cayenta Maintenance.docx
	Item 3.E - Cover Page
	Item 3.E - Bid Tab - GT-2 Painting
	Item 3.E - Draft Agreement - GT-2 Painting
	Item 3.E - 20230530 Resolution - Painting of Gas Turbine #2 GT2.docx
	Item 3.F - Cover Page
	Item 3.F - 20230530 Resolution - Bid Rejection for Construction of Well House #42.docx
	Cover Page
	Marion Road Project Budget Status as of 05232023.pdf
	Bid Tab - Marion Road Underground Distribution Bids
	Draft Agreement - Underground Distribution Project
	20230530 Resolution - Marion Road Substation Electrical Duct Bank Project Bids.docx
	Item 4.A - Cover Page
	Item 5.A - Cover Page
	Item 5.A - RPU AMI Implementation Project Plan May24
	Item 6.A - Cover Page
	Item 6.A - Index of Board Policies-revised.xlsx
	Item 8.A - Cover Page
	Item 8.A - Division Reports May 2023.pdf

